STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Docusign Envelope 1D: 3B0C2846-CB4B-4955-9787-7TA257DB34A57
(Gt A
s 1Y
)\ ;
el

Lori A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Katjs 8. Fox
Director

April 8, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Technical Assistance
Collaborative, Inc. (VC# 342192), Boston, MA, to continue to provide the Department with
assistance in developing a Continuum of Care (CoC) System and Coordinated Entry System for
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development {HUD), in addition to providing general
homeless system assessments and support, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $40,000 from $40,000 to $80,000 and extending the completion
date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2027, effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on September 20, 2023,
item #44, and amended on May 15, 2024, item #22.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER

PROGRAM
 State | Class / Job Current | Increased Revised
Fiscal | pceount Class Title | \ mber | Budget |(Decreased) | g, qoqt
Year Amount
Grants for Pub
2024 | 074-500585 Asst and Relief 42309685 $20,000 $0 $20,000
2025 | 074-500585 | Srantsfor Pub | 4oa07050 1 $20,000 $0|  $20,000
Asst and Relief \ ’
Grants for Pub
2026 | 102-500731 Asst and Relief 42307050 $0 $20,000 $20,000
2027 | 102-500731 | Sransfor Pub | 447050 $0 $20,000|  $20,000
Asst and Relief 4 '
Total $40,000 $40,000 $80,000
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Her Excellency, Govemor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. Federal regulations require all
procurement efforts for these services to be directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) throughan annual Continuum of Care (CoC) competitive application
process. The Department must contract with the selected Vendor as a result of this HUD process.
HUD awarded New Hampshire additional funding for this CoC technical assistance, planning
grant project on February 26, 2024. )

The purpose of this request is to exercise a contract renewa! option for the Contractor to
continue providing technical assistance support to the Department for the development of the
CoC Governance including system analysis and evaluation to ensure alignment with HUD's
requirements and Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) data standards. The
Contractor will continue to assist with CoC Systems improvement and the development of
updated policies, procedures, and monitoring tools in addition to providing a training series for the
Continuum of Care on housing focused services.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing annual reports provided by
the Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and

contractual agreements.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the originai
agreement, the paries have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Govemnor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) of the remaining three (3) years available.

Should the Governor-and Council not authorize this request, the Batance of the State CoC
program will not have technical assistance or support, which is necessary to ensure the CoC is
meeting all HUD requirements while improving the system of homeless services. Additionally, not
authorizing this request could result in a diminished HUD performance score and the possible
elimination of existing housing programs statewide. The funds in this program are dedicated to
the purposes described and cannot be used for direct client services.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 14.267, FAIN NH0162L1T002300.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission ig to join communities and faniilies
in providing opportunities for citizens lo achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amgndment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care Planning Grant Technical Assistance contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or
"Department”) and Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. ("the Contractor").

" WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement {the “Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2023 (ltem #44), and amended on May 15, 2024 (item #22), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General F:‘rovisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block |177'., Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2027

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:
$80,000

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1., to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Prog/rams under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitte A-Housing
Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded by the US Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Continuum of Care Program, Assistance Listing Number 14.267, on:

1.1.1. March 14, 2022, FAIN NHO133L1T002100;

1.1.2. March 28, 2023, FAIN NHO156L1T002200, and

1.1.3. February 26, 2024, FAIN NH0162L.1T002300.
4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be for services provided in the fulfilment of this Agreement as specified in
Exhibit B Scope of Services, and in accordance with Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-4
Budget, Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit C-3 Budget, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference

herein.
6. Add Exhibit C-4 Budget, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.
0s
_ | M&
Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. A-S5-13 : Contractor InitiaLs
$5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01-A02 Page 10f3 Dale

v71.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 3B0C2846-CB4B-4955-97B7-TA257DB34A57

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Govemor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
4/8/2025 2 S. Fo
Date Name:Katja S. Fox

Title: Director

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

DocuSigned by:
4/8/2025 ﬁum't, terls
Date Name: FaFve b

Title: Managing Director

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. A-S5-13

$8-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
v.7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. :

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
4/16/2025 l ‘7;%L3n,63u43nﬁ
Date Name: ‘Guarino

Title: attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name: =
Title:
L
Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. A-S5-13
§5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01-A02 Page 3 of 3

v.7.12.23
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Exhibit C-3, Budget, Amendment ¥2

TAC - Technical Assistance
|coC Funds - NHO162L1T002300

SFY2026 - 7/1/25-6/30/26
e —r—— T S S Sty e,
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
CoC Funds 3 20,000 | § - 3 - H - H $ . $ 20,000 % $ -
TOTAL HUD
|FUNDSIBALANCE | ¢ 20,000 [ $ - Is - |s - |s - | - |3 20000 | 3 - |s -
TOTAL -7/1/25-6/30/26
S~ e —
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRAGTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
CoC Funds $ 20,000 | $ - 3 T '$ . s . 3 .o s 3 20,0008 . 3
TOTAL HUD
{FUNDSIBALANCE | § 20,000 [ $ - s - I3 - |s - |s - |s 20,000 s - |
Total W/O Match $ 20,000
- os
[ne
Technical Assistance Collaborative, Ine. Contractor Initials

$5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01-A02

Page 1of1 Date 4/8/2025
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TAC - Tachnical Assistance
ICoC Funds - NH0162L1T002300

Exhibit C-4, Budget, Amendment #2

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-6/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHAE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY | BUDGET | YTD | MONTHLY | BUDGET | YTD| MONTHLY
CoC Funds $  20000]S 5 $ - |s- s - Is 20000]s- |s -
[TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S 20,0005 3 ~ I . [s- |s . |s z0000[s- [s &

TOTAL -7/1/26-6/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY | BUDGET | YTD| MONTHLY BUDGET | YTD| MONTHLY
CoC Funds $ 20.000 | § $ $ - |$- $ S 20,000 | § - 5
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 200005 5 - s R s 20000]8- |s -

Techanical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.
§5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-D1-A02

Page 10of 1

Total W/O Match

$ 20,000

D3
L
Contractor Initials \—on

4/8/2025

Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
COLLABORATIVE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on
December 22, 2020. T further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of $tate’s office have been received and

15 in good standing as fur as this office is concerned,

Business [D: 858609
Certificate Number: 0006660128

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

T hereto set my hand and cause to be aflixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshure,
this 5th day of April A.D, 2024,

David M, Scanlan

Secretary of State




-~
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I John Abbott , hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannct be contract signatory)
Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

{Corporation/LLC Name)

1.1 2m a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer, of

- 2. The followingzis a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 26 . 2025 | at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

Marie Herb, Executive Director
(Name and Title of Contraclt Signatory),

VOTED: That (may list more than one person}

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. " 2
is duly authorized on behalf of oennica’ Assisionce Lolaboreve. M 1o enter into contracts or agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized lo execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Autherity. | further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dateg. 03/26/2025
Ao AEE6TE
}
90

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: John Abbott

Title: Dir. Bus. Operations/T réaSLE

Rev. 03/24/20
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~ N o _ DATE (MMODAYYYY)
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 4‘,1,2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DQES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in'lieu of such endorsemeant(s).

P:slr)\tcrej Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC f@‘!‘;jﬁ“ Nayell Guerero
4000 Midiantic Drive S ' (R o, e 856-866-3201 IR, oy
Suite 200 ADDREss; Nayeli Guerrero@ajg.com
Mount Laurel NJ 08054 INSURER(S] AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 18058
'#%?::ical B B TECHASS-01| \simer B : Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company 22357
15 Court Square FL 11 ' INSURERC .
Boston MA 02108 INSURERD :
INSURERE ;
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 916984489 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIQD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WIiTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN RECUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL[SUGR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
R TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WD POLICY NUMBER (MMDONYYYY] | (MWDDIYYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ¥ PHPK2552620 71112024 7112025 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
| DAMAGE Tt
CLAIMS-MAGE | X | occur SENOIRENLED $ 1,000,000
, MED EXP (Any one person) 520,000
PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
X | poLicy D '}E& D toc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 3,000,000
OTHER: i
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2552620 7112026 | 71172025 ﬁm}g'"sﬁ LiMT g
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per parson) | §
OWNED SCHEDULED .
- . Schen BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| § 1,000.000
X | HRED ¥ | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| 7 | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY ' | {Per pccident)
; 5
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 3
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3
DED I I RETENTION $ $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION 83WBCEIBS?7 zoze | 1025 X | By | o
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN y
ANYPROPRIETORPARTNERIEXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 3 1,000,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE! 5 1,000,000
If , describa under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
A | Professional Lisbibty PHSD 1808645020 71112024 71172025 | Uimit $1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional R $chaduis, may be it more space is required)

Certificate holder is Included as Additional Insured as respects General Liability and Auto Liability policies, pursuant to and subject to the policy's terms,
definitions, conditions and exclusions. ;

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
State of NH ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Department of Health and :
Human Services AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
129 Pieasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857 o £
I
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved,
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

THIS CERTIFICATE SUPERSEDES PREVIOUSLY ISSUED CERTIFICATE
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}

Mission Statement, Technical Assistance Collaborative:

The Technical Assistance Collaborative is a nonprofit organization dedicated to helping our
nation’s human services, health care, homelessness, and affordable housing systems
implement policies and practices that empower people to live healthy, independent lives in the
communities they choose.
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The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Single Audit Reporting Package

June 30, 2023

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
NOTES TO.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

16
17

17

18

20
23
24
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors
The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. (TAC),
a Massachusetts nonprofit organization, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023
and 2022, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TAC as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repert. We are required
to be independent of TAC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilitites of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
 statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about TAC's ahility to continue as a going
concemn within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

| MOORE

An independent member of
Moore North America, Inc.

L __________________________________________________________J4M\e |



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of intermal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of TAC's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantiai doubt about of TAC's ability to continue as a going concem for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 7, 2023
on our consideration of TAC’s intemnal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on TAC's injemal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering TAC's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

_jg'TW4QmPM5L

G.T. Reilly & Company

Milton, Massachusetts
December 7, 2023



The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30

Agsets

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Contracts and grants receivable -
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NOTES RECENABLE, Impact Fund (Note 9)

INVESTMENTS (Note 3)
Mutual Funds

SECURITY DEPQSITS
LEASE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET, Net (Note 5)

TOTAL ASSETS

Liabilities and Net Assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenues
Current portion of lease obligation (Note 5)

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Lease obligation, net of current portion (Note 5)
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated
Board designated funds (Note 4)
With doner restrictions (Note 4)

TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2023 2022
Whithout Donor WHihh Donor Without Donor With Conor
Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictionsa Resfrictions Total
$ 227913 § 17,300 $ 245213 $ 671683 $ 17,300 $ 688,083
3,328,503 - 3,328,503 2,737,108 - 2,737,108
65,690 i 65,690 74177 : 74177
3,622,106 17.300 3,639,406 3,482,968 17.300 3,500,268
376,404 s 376,404 368,452 z 368,452
3,657,640 : 3,657,640 3,388,908 = 3,388,908
75,000 E 75,000 175,000 - 175,000
1,950,155 : 1,950,155 2,305,446 = 2,305,448
$ 9681,305 § 17,300 § 9,698,605 $ 9720774 $ 17,300 $ 9,738,074
$ 684945 § - $ 684,945 868,631 $ - .+ % 868631
614,265 . 614,265 708,168 . 706,168
864,600 = 864,600 509,817 . 500,817
364,658 ‘ 364,658 355,290 = 355,280
2,528,468 = 2,528,468 2,439,908 = 2,439,906
1,748,905 z 4,718,905 2,054,159 L 2,054,159
4,247,373 . 4,247,373 4,494,085 z 4,494 085
5,331,305 = 5,331,395 5,050,715 ” 5.050,715
102,537 - 102,537 175,994 - 175,994
5 17,300 17,300 . 17,300 17,300
5,433,932 17,300 5.451,232 5,226,709 17,300 5,244,009
$ 9681305 $ 17,300 $ 9,698,605 $ 9720774 $ 17,300 $ 9.738.074

3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Staterments of Activities and Changes in Net Assots

Years Ended June 30

2023 2022
Whhout Donor Without Donor '
Rostrictions Wih Donor Restrictions With Donor
Undesignatod  Board Designated _ Rastrictions Total Undesignated = Board Designated _ Restrictions Total
= i -
OPERATING REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Contracts and grants (Note 7) $ 12840864 ~ § - $ - $ 12,840,984 12642113 $ - $ 150000 § 12,762,113
Net assefs released from program restrictions (Nota 4) - - - - 327,085 - (327,095) -
Agprogpriation of board designated net assets (Note 4) 223,948 - - 223 948 138,071 - - 136,871
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE AND SUPPORT 13,084,912 - - 13,084,812 13,108,179 . (177.095) - 12,920 084
OPERATING EXPENSES : .
Program services 8,980,848 - - ] 8,980,946 9,833,755 - - 9,633,755
General and administrative 3,940,450 - - 3,940,450 3171218 - - . - 3171218
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 12,921,396 - - 12,921,298 12,804 971 - - 12,804 971
K
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - OPERATING ACTMTIES 143,518 - - 143,516 301,208 - (177.095) 124,113
NON-DPERATING ACTMTIES
Net gain (lcss) on investments (Note 3) 189,965 - 189,965 (733.358) - (733.358)
Investment income, net 97,690 - - : 97,650 145,534 - - 145,534
Board designation of investment funds (Note 4) (150,491) - 150,491 - (152.120) 152,120 -
Appropration of board designated net assets (Note 4) - {223,948) - {223,848) = {138,871) - (138,971)
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FROM .

NON-OPERATING ACTMTES : 137,164 (73,457} - 63,707 (739,844) 15,149 - (724,795)
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 280,680 (73.457) - 207223 (438.738) 15,149 (177,095) (600.682)
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNNG OF YEAR £,080,718 175,994 17,300 5,244,009 5,489,451 160,845 194,385 5,844 691
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 5331395 § 102,537 § 17,300 § 5451232 § 5050715 _$ 175994 § 17300 _$ 5244 009

b
4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



‘The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ 207,223 § (600,682)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Amortization of right-of-use asset 355,291 353,993
tnvestment income, net (97,690) {145,534)
Net (gain) loss on investments {189,965) 733,358
Reinvestment of interest income - Impact fund {7,952) (4,613}
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contracts and grants receivable (591,395) {660,099)
Prepaid expenses ! 8,487 (17,969)
Lease right-of-use asset : - (2,659,439)
Accounts payable (183,686) 58,284
Accrued expenses {91,903) 76,582
Deferred revenues 354,783 146,964
Lease obligation (325,886) 2,409 449
Security deposit 100,000 -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTMITIES - {462,693) (279,706)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales of investments 211,000 378,600
Purchases of investments (289,767) (119,840)
Interest and dividend income 130,915 184,841
Investment fees {33,225) {(39,307)
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES i 18,923 404,294
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ~ (443,770) 124,588
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 688,983 564,395
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 245213 $ 688983
S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Statements of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30

2023 2022
Program Program "
Services Administration Total Services Administration Total
Payroil and Related:
Salaries $ 2,992,570 $ 2,371,929 $ 5,364,499 $ 3,239,226 $ 2,080,009 $ 5,319,235
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 937,816 684,660 1,622,476 1,176,956 285079 1,462,035
Total payroll and related 3,930,386 3,056,589 6,986,975 4 416,182 2.365,088 6,781.270
Other: .
Consultants 4,669,740 38,880 4,708,620 4,854 560 16,839 4,871,399
Travel 263,082 58,509 321,591 183,179 © 35,799 218,978
Occupancy - 375,811 375,811 - 364,198 364,198
Meetings and conferences 88,471 15,847 104,318 68,128 6,529 74 657
Telephone ! 17,805 80,491 98,296 17,207 91,679 108,886
Office supplies, events and postage 6,933 83,183 70,116 79,051 47 232 126,283
Printing 3,622 1,989 5511 8,243 7 8,250
Professional fees - - 46,732 46,732 - 43,279 43,279
Dues and subscriptions 1,007 28,028 29,035 7.205 11,727 18,932
Repairs and maintenance - 38,380 38,380 - 36,498 36,498
Donations - 39,625 39,625 - 25,700 25,700
Insurance - 30,111 30,111 - 31,617 31,817
Minor furniture and equipment ' - 41,178 41,178 - 67,339 67,339
Miscellaneous - 18,672 18,672 & 22,890 ‘22,890
Advertising and recruitment : - 6,425 6,425 - 4,795 4795
Total other 5,050,560 883,861 5,934,421 5,217,573 806,128 8,023,701
Total expenses $ 8,980,946 $ 3,940,450 $12,921,396 $ 9,833,755 $ 3,171,216 $12,804,971
6

The accompanying notes are an integrel part of these financial statements.



The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Notas to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

Note 1 — Operations and Nonprofit Status

The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. {"TAC") was incorporated in May of 1992. TAC provides
research and technical assistance to national, state, and local health, human services and affordable
housing organizations throughout the United States.

TAC is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation) formed for charitable
purposes under Section 501 (c) (3) of the interna! Revenue Code (“IRC"). TAC is also exempt from state
income taxes. Donors may deduct contributions made to TAC within the requirements of the IRC.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Statement Presentation — The accompanying financial statements of TAC have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as they
apply to not-for-profit organizations, which requires TAC to present financial information in its statements of
financial position and statements of activities and changes in net assets according to two classes of net
assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions as discussed below.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor restrictions. At its discretion, the Board of Directors may designate from net assets without donor
restrictions amounts to be used for specific purposes (see Note 4).

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met with the passage of time, the
occurrence of certain events or by the use of the funds as specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions may be perpetual in nature where the donor stipulates that the funds be maintained in perpetuity.
{See Note 4).

Donor-restricted support is recorded as "net assets with donor restrictions” when received or unconditionally
pledged. When a temporary donor-imposed restriction expires, either by use of the funds for the specified
purpose or by the expiration of a time restriction, refated amounts of "net assets with donor restrictions” are
reclassified to "net assets without donor restrictions™ and reported in the statement of activities as "net assets
released from restrictions”.

Contributions made with donor-imposed restrictions to maintain the principal in perpetuity, while allowing
the use of income generated therefrom, are also classified as "net assets with donor restrictions™. Income
derived from the investment of these perpetual net assets is reported as an increase in "net assets without
donor restrictions” or "net assets with donor restrictions” depending on the terms of the donor instrument.
Unrealized gains or losses on perpetual net assets are reported as increases or decreases in "net assets
with donor restrictions” unless the donor explicitly states otherwise.

Contributions — TAC recognizes contributions in accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2018-08, “Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions
Made". The ASU assists entities in evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for, and reported
as, contributions or as exchange transactions, and in determining whether a contribution is conditional or
unconditional.



Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont.)

The ASU ciarifies that a contribution represents a nonreciprocal transaction where the grantor or donor does
not receive a benefit of commensurate value in retum for the assets or resources provided to the recipient.
In an exchange transaction, the resource provider receives some thing or benefit of commensurate value in
return for the resources provided. Exchange transactions include instances where ‘a transfer of assets
represents a payment from a third-party payer on behalf of an existing exchange transaction between the
recipient and an identified customer receiving the benefit. However, where the benefit or potential benefit is
received by the public, or segments thereof, and the resource provider (such as a foundation, government
agency, corporation; or other entity), only receives indirect or incidental benefit that is not of commensurate
value, the transaction is considered a contribution for accounting purposes. Distinguishing between
contributions and exchange transactions determines the appropnate accounting and reporting for a trans-
action.

Substantially all of TAC's revenue and support are considered exchange transactions that are accounted
for as revenues from contracts with customers (see below and Note 7).

Conditional Grants and Contributions — Conditional grants and contributions are not recognized in the
statement of activities until they become unconditional, that is, at the time when the conditions on which
they depend are substantially met. Any such funds that have been received prior to the conditions being
met are recorded as liabilities.

Revenue Recognition on Contracts and Other Exchange Transactions — TAC recognizes revenue in
acoordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification {ASC) Topic 608, *Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”, with regard to its exchange transactions. The standard is based on the principle that an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Under Topic 806, revenue recognition is determined through the following steps:

identification of the contract

identification of the performance obligations in the contract

Determination of the transaction price

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Recognition of revenue at a point in time (when), or over time (as), a performance
obligation is satisfied

P egolno

Contract accounts receivable represent amounts billed or scheduled to be paid under the terms of contracts.
Other contract assets consist of amounts recorded as revenues under contracts that have not yet been
billed or are not yet scheduled to be paid under the contracts. Amounts billed or received in advance of,
performance under contracts are considered liabilities and reported as deferred revenues. Note 7 discusses
the revenue recognition for TAC's contracts and other exchange transactions, and it includes a
disaggregation of revenue and other revenue information.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For the purposes of classification in the statements of financial position and
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of checking, savings and money market accounts.

Contracts and Grants Receivable — Contract accounts receivable consist of amounts billed or scheduled to
be paid under the terms of contracts. This amount also includes other contract assets which represent
amounts recorded as revenue under contracts that have not yet been billed or are not yet scheduled to
be paid, which approximates $227,900 and $67,600 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. When
considered necessary by management, contract accounts receivable and other contract assets are stated
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, which would be reported on the face of TAC’s statement of
financial position. The allowance is established via a provision for bad debts charged to operations. On a
periodic basis, management evaluates its accounts receivable and other contract assets and establishes or
adjusts its allowance to an amount that it believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on accounts
that may become uncollectible, based on evaiuations of the collectability of individual accounts, and on
current economic conditions. Accounts are charged against the allowance when management believes that
the collectability of the specific account is unlikely. No allowance was deemed necessary by management
at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

¢



Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

Fair Value Measurements — TAC follows the accounting and disclosure standards under ASC Topic 820,
Fair Value Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities, principally its investments (see below). This
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about
fair value measurements.

Investments — TAC reports its investments at fair value in the statement of financial position, with the
correspondlng realized and unrealized gains and losses included in the statements of activities and changes
in net assets. Investment income includes interest and dividends that are recorded when eamned, net of
investment management fees (see Note 3).

Property and Equipment — TAC's policy is to capitalize furniture and equipment with a cost of $5,000 or
greater. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives between 3 and
. 7 years. Furniture and equipment with a cost below this threshold are expensed in the period the cost is
incurred and included in minor fumniture and equipment in the accompanying statements of functional
expenses. TAC's property and equipment had a cost of $29,197, which was fully depreciated as of June 30,
2023 and 2022.

Accounting for Leases — TAC follows ASC Topic 842, Leases. The standard requires that a “fease-right-of-
use asset” and a “lease obligation™ be recorded for all lease agreements, with the permitted elected
exception for short-term leases. Leases are classified as either finance or operating leases. At this time,
TAC does not have any leases that meet the criteria of a finance lease.

For leases classified as operating leases TAC:

+ recognizes a “lease right-of-use asset” in its statement of financial position, representing its right
to use the underlying asset, and a “lease obligation™ representing the present value of its
obligation to make future lease payments

* recognizes lease expense by allocating the total of all required lease payments plus initial direct
costs and lease incentives, if any, over the lease term on a straight-line basis, including fixed
payments for any executory costs such as real estate taxes and operating expenses of the lessor

« recognizes variable executory and other costs, if any, as lease expense in the period incurred

Measure of Operations in Statements of Activities — Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing,
major, or central to the provision of program or contract services are reported as operating revenues and
support and operating expenses in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets.
Investment income and gains are reported as non-operating revenues or losses. (See “Presentatlon of
Board Designated Net Aeets” below)

Eunctional Allocation of Expenses — The costs and expenses of TAC are summarized on a functional basis
in the statement of activities, program functions versus general and administrative functions. Program
service expenses consist primarily of the cost of satisfying performance obligations under contracts. The
statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.

Expenses related directly to a program or contract are charged directly to that program or contract, while
other expenses that directly relate to the general operation of TAC are charged to general and administrative
functions. Certain payroll and related expenses are allocated between programs and/or functions based on
actual time reports or management’s estimates of the percentage of the expense attributable to each

program or supporting function.

Advertising Costs — TAC expenses advenrtising costs in the period the costs are incurred.



Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.}

Income Taxes — TAC accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. TAC has determined that there are no uncertain tax positions that qualify for -
either recognition or disclosure in the financial statements at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

Use of Estimates ~ The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP may require
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates and assumptions. Significant management estimates in the accompanying financial
statements include the allocation of certain costs and expenses among program or contract expenses and
general and administrative expenses, and the determination of satisfaction of donor and grantee program
restrictions for the release of restricted net assets.

Presentation of Board Designated Net Assets —-Management presents board-designated net assets as a
separate component of unrestricted net assets in its statement of financial position. Additional Board
designations of net assets are separately presented as non-operating activities in the statement of activities
and changes in net assets. Board appropriations of previously designated net assets for use each year are
reclassified out of non-operating activities and presented as a component of operating activities in the
statement of activities.

Subsequent Events - In accordance with GAAP, management has evaluated subsequent events involving
TAC for potential recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events
are events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 2023 up to December 7, 2023, the date that these
financial statements were authonzed to be issued.

Note 3 = Investments

The following is a summary of the fair value of TAC's investments, by type and category, at June 30:

2023 2022
Mutual Funds ;
Equity Funds:
International $ 328,065 $ 328,384
Domestic:
Large cap 1,560,686 1,400,096
Other 353,383 152,240
1,914,069 1,552,336
Total Equity Funds 2,242,134 1,880,720
Fixed Income Funds:
Domestic 1,415,506 1,508,188
$ 3,657,640 $ 3,388,908

10



Note 3 - Investments {Cont.)

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received upon selling an asset or paid to settle a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. TAC uses a framework for
measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure
and disclose fair value. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels which are defined as:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other
inputs that are observable, or can be comoborated by observable market data for substantially the
fulf term of the assets:

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity
to develop its own assumptions that are significant to the fair value measurement.

The level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. TAC's investments have been valued using Level 1 inputs. The following is a
description of the valuation methodologies used for investments measured at fair value, including the

general description of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy:

Mutua! Funds ~ These investments are public investment vehicles valued using the Net Asset Value
{NAV) provided by the administrator of the fund. The NAV is a quoted price in an active market.

Net investment income consisted of the following for the years ended June 30:

2023 2022
Interest and dividends $ 130,915 $ 184,841
Investment fees (33,225) (39,307)
$ 97,690 $ 145534

Net gains (losses) on investments consisted of the following for the years ended June 30:

2023 2022

Unrealized gains (losses) $ 215566 $ (793542)
Realized (losses) gains (25,601) 60,184

$ 189,965 $ (733,358)

During the year ended June 30, 2023, sales of investment securities approximated $211,000 ($379,000
during the year ended June 30, 2022).

Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term, and that such
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying statements of financial position.

Investments are presented as long-term assets in the accompanying statements of financiat position as it is
management's intent to hold these assets for long-term growth.

1"



Note 4 — Net Assets with Donor Restrictions and Board Designations

Net assets with donor restrictions total $17,300 at both June 30, 2023 and 2022 and are restricted for
specific program purposes. During the year ended June 30, 2022, donor restricted net assets released for
program use approximated $327,100 (there were no such releases of donor restrictions during the
year ended June 30, 2023). /

The Board has implemented a policy in which each .year 4% of the average investment balance is
designated to be used for various administrative projects which are not funded through outside sources.

The use of these designated funds are shown as a reclassification from non-operating activities to operating

activities each yéar as an “allocation of board designated net assets”. At June 30, 2023 $102,537 of net
assets have been designated by the board but not yet spent by the Organization ($175, 994 at June 30,
2022) During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, designated net assels were appropriated for use
for various administrative projects approximating $223,900 and $137,000, respectively.

Note 5~ Lease Commitments

TAC leases office space under an eight-year and four-month (100 month} agreement expiring in November
of 2028. The lease agreement requires base monthly payments that commenced at approximately $29,480
and escalate to approximately $33,862 throughout the term of the lease. Additionally, TAC received a rent
“holiday” for the first two months of the lease term, as well as in October of 2021 and November of 2022. In
addition to the base rent, TAC is billed annually for its proportionate share of real estate taxes and operating
expenses that are in excess of the base year amounts as defined in the agreement. After 24 months, in
accordance with the provisions of the lease agreement $100,000 of the $175,000 security deposit was
refunded to TAC. The security deposit will remain at $75,000 for the remainder of the lease term.

The following is a summary of the recorded lease right-of-use asset under ASC 842, “Leases” at June 30:

2023 2022
Operating lease right-of-use asset $ 2,659,439 $ 2,659,439
Less accumulated amortization (709,284) ~  (353,993)

Operating lease right-of-use asset, net $ 1950155 § 2 305,446

Future minimum payments under the office lease are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30
2024 $ 372328
2025 379,794
2026 387,386
2027 - 395,124
2028 403,026
Thereafter : 169,310
Total future gross lease payments 2,106,968
Less unamortized discount (23,405)
Recorded present value of lease obligation 2,083,563
Current portion 364,658
Long-term portion . 31,718,905

12



Note 5— Leasé Commitments {(Cont.)

The discount rate imputed on the lease obligation was .40% which represents the risk-free rate at the time
of TAC's transition to ASC Topic 842 effective July 1, 2021. Required payments for TAC's proportionate

\share of real estate tax increases are not included in the recorded lease obligation and asset since they are
variable payments that do not depend on a specified index or rate. They are recorded to expense as they
are incurred.

Lease costs consist of the following for the years ended June 30:

2023 2022
Operating lease expense $ 384350 § 364,350
Variable lease expense 1,503 -
Short-term and insignificant lease expense 13,295 11,751

$ 379148 $ 376,101

Cash flows applied to this operating lease totaled approximately $335,000 and $329,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Note 6 — Retirement Plans

Annually, TAC's Board of Directors elects to contribute an amount to a qualified retirement plan for its
employees. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Board of Directors elected to contribute 10%
of eligible compensation, resulting in contributions totaling approximately $461,000 and $430,000,
respectively, which are included in payroll taxes and fringe benefits in the accompanying statements of
functional expenses.

Note 7 — Revenues

A general description of TAC's services and revenue sources is provided in Note 1. TAC records revenues
from contracts with customers as sefvices are provided over the terms of the contracts. A significant amount
of its revenues are generated from the federal government, state agencies, not-for-profit and other
organizations under unit-rate and cost reimbursable contracts. Payments to TAC are subject to audit by the
appropriate federal government or state agency. In the opinion of management, the results of such audits,
if any, will not have a material effect on the financial position of TAC as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, or on
the changes in its net assets for the years then ended.

Revenues and support are disaggregated by source type as follows for the years ended June 30:

2023 2022
Contract Revenues:
Federal agencies $ 7,272,986 $ 7,253,293
Various states & agencies 2,357,565 2,811,886
Various cities & counties 214,105 307,996
NFP & other organizations 2,996,308 2,268,938
Total contract revenues 12,840,964 12,642,113
Private Grants (Contributions): - 150,000
Appropriation of board designated net assets (Note 4) 223,948 136,971
Revenue & Support _ $ 13,064,912 $ 12,929,084

13



Note 8 — Financial Instruments, Credit Risks and Concentration Risks

Financial instruments that potentially subject TAC to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and
equivalents, contracts and grants receivable, investments, and accounts payable. A summary of credit and
concentration risks;and other concentrations follows.

Cash and Equivalents — TAC maintains its cash balances in Massachusetts banks and with an investment
company. At certain times during the year, cash balances exceeded the federally insured amounts. At
June 30, 2023, based on bank balances, TAC had approximately $213,300 of deposits in excess of the
federal insured limits.

Contract Revenues and Accounts Receivable — A general disaggregation of TAC's contract revenues by
source is presented in Note 7. A significant amount of its contracts are with the U.S. Departments of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) and Veterans Affairs (VA), as well as the Massachusetts Executive Office
of Health and Human Services (EOHHS). Contract revenue and accounts receivable concentrations consist
of the following as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total -
Unrestricted Percentage Unrestricted Percentage
Operating of Contracts Operating of Confracts
Revenue & . Receivable at Revenue & - Receivable at
Government Agencies Support Year End Support Year End
HUD 30% 14% 34% 9%
VA 26% 19% 22% 22%
Mass EOHHS - - 9% 12%
J 56% 33% 65% 43%

Investments — TAC holds investments in various mutual funds as summarized by type in Note 3.

Accounts Payable and Consultant Expense — At June 30, 2023, TAC has approximately $120,300 of
accounts payable to one international management consulting firm, representing 18% of its total accounts
payable. During the year ended June 30, 2023 approximately $1,623,000 of TAC’s consultant expense
represents fees billed by one consultant, 34% of its total consultant expense for the year. In the previous
fiscal year $1,474,000 of consultant expense represented fees from the same consultant (30% of the total).

Note 9 — Notes Receivable — Impact Fund (
TAC has two Impact Notes Receivable ($110,000 and $250,000) from the Enterprise Community
Loan Fund, Inc., a not-for-profit 501(C)(3) corporation. The notes have interest rates of 2.5% and 2.0%,
respectively, and they mature on May 31, 2024 and May 26, 2026, respectively. Interest on the two notes
is due annually on September 30, but TAC has elected to reinvest the annual interest payments. The loan
funds are intended to be used by the Enterprise Community Loan Fund, Inc. to deliver innovative financial
products and technical assistance to’'mission-aligned organizations to acquire, develop, and preserve quality
affordable housing for low and moderate-income families, and to revitalize their communities by providing
access to good jobs, quality affordable housing, schools, transportation, and healthy-living environments.
Repayment of the notes is dependent upon the Enterprise Community Loan Fund's financial condition and
operations. Interest earned and reinvested for the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 approximated $7,952
and $4,613, respectively. '
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Note 10 - Financia! Assets and Liquidity Resources

Financial assets and liquidity resources available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use within one year of the date of the statement of financial position comprise the.
following at June 30:

2023 2022
Financial Assets:
Cash and equivalents $ 2271913 § 671683
Contracts and grants receivable 3,328,503 2,737,108
Investments ° 3,657,640 3,388,908
Total financial assets available within one year $ 7,214,056 $ 6,797,699

As part of TAC's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as
its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations become due. Management believes that TAC has
sufficient financial assets available to cover the general expenditures over the next twelve months.
Expenditures for program services over the next twelve months depend on the amount of TAC's revenue
contracts and support.

15
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Board of Directors
The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Our report on our audit of the financial statements of The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. appears
on Page 1. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2023, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures .
applied in the audit of the financia! statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with ‘auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to.the basic
financial statements as a whole.

)TW 4 O:mpfua

G.T Reilly & Company

Milton, Massachusetts
December 7, 2023

1| MOORE

An independent mernber of
Moore North America, Inc.
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The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

~ Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Endad June 30, 2023

Federal  Pass-Through

Assistance Entity Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Listing ldentifying Throughto ,  Total Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Nurmber Number Subrecipients  Expenditures
1

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Community Compass Technical Assistance and
Capacity Building 14.259 N/A $ - $ 3,876,062

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

VA Supportive Services for Veteran Families
Program 64.033 N/A $ 5 1,674,970

’

Total : $ - % 5551032

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award
activity of The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the
year ended June 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2. U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, ang Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of The Technical Assistance Collaborative Inc., it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of The Technical
Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and/or OMB Circular A122,

Cost Principtes for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3 — Indirect Cost Rate

The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance for its Federai programs.
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Independerit Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
The Technical Assistance Collaberative, Inc.

We have - audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of The Technical Assistance
Collaborative, Inc. (“TAC"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the
related statements of activities, changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows, for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 7, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered TAC's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purposes of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of TAC's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of TAC's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a controt does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

IX| MOORE
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether TAC'’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain,provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on campliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of TAC'’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering TAC's integral control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

AT gt Gpray

G.T Reilly & Company

L

Milton, Massachusetts
December 7, 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Board of Directors
The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Program

We have audited The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.’s (“TAC") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on TAC's major Federal program for the year ended June 30, 2023. TAC's major
Federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, TAC complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section
of our repont.

We are required to be independent of TAC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of TAC's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, -rules, and provisions of contracts. or grant agreements applicable to TAC's federal
programs.

IX| MOORE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or errof, and express an opinion
on TAC's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when'it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud
is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overmide of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance reqmrements
referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
TAC's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally aocepted auditing standards Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures inciude examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding TAC's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of TAC's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of TAC's internal control over compllance Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
Federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a Federal program thal is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal contro! over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibi[ities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

}TM + @mﬂﬂwdm

G.T Reilly & Company

Milton, Massachusetts
December 7, 2023

-
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The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

'Year Ended June 30, 2023

{A) Summary of Audit Results

1.

8.

9.

The independent auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. were prepared in-accordance with GAAP.

No significant deficiencies refating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financiai Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government

‘Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of The Technical Assiétance
Collaborative, Inc., which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control
over Compliance required by the Uniform Guidance.

" The independent auditors’ report on compliance for all major federal award programs for The

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion. \

The audit did not disclose any findings relative to the major federal award program for The Technical
Assistance Collaborative, Inc. that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516 (a) (major federal awards program), Part C of this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs are as follows:

U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development: -
Community Compass Technical Assistance and Capacity Building 14.259

U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs:
VA Supportive Services for Veteran Families Program 64.033

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.

The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. was classified as a high-risk auditee.

(B) FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

(C) FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD

PROGRAM AUDIT

None
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The Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2023

There no prior year audit findings.
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Technical Assistance Collaborative

Board of Directors 2025

Sheila Crowley, Chairperson
Former ED, National Low Income Housing Coalition

George Brice, Member
Prog. Dev. Spc., Collaborative Support Programs of NJ, Inc.

Sue Devlin, Member
Assoc. ED, Comprehensive Behavioral Healthcare

Aaron Gornstein, Member _
President & CEO, Preservation of Affordable Housing, inc.

John Lozier, Member
Former ED, National Health Care for the Homeless Council

Anne Miskey, Member
CEO, Union Station Homeless Services

John Parvensky, Member
President & CEO, Colorado Coalition for the Homeless



Melany Mondello, M.B.A.

Profile Skills & Expertise

Ms. Mendello (she, her, hers) has over 23 years of experience in policies
and practices related to housing and services for vulnerable populations
including those experiencing homelessness. She has directed U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuums of
Care (CoCs) and helped state and local government and nonprofit agencies
in their efforts to end and prevent homelessness in rural and urban areas.

Streamlining &
prioritizing housing and
services o vulnerable
pepulations

CoC Program
implementation, with
focus on rural areas

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. (Boston, MA) » Developing &
Senior Consultant (2021 — Present) implementing statewide
Senior Associate (2010 — 2021) PSH plans
. . . . » Creating Qualily
Leads and manages consultation and technical assistance on policy and
Improvement Systems

best practices in solutions to homelessness and institutionalization of
people with disabilities with a range of clients, including federal, state, and
local government, national associations, philanthropy, and other
stakeholders.

Recent Projects

+ Provides remote and on-site TA on developing local planning bodies,
creating and implementing performance measures, assisting troubled
projects, and developing funding priornities.

« Helps increase supportive housing development capacity and knowledge
on accessing federal, state, and local resources in rural areas.

« Helps states to develop and implement permanent supportive housing
{(PSH) plans.

« Delivers customized presentations on the CoC Program, the Homeless
Management Information System (HMIS}, annual performance reports,
housing models, cost studies, and high-perferming continuum structure.

+ Performs program review, monitoring, and regulation interpretation for
federal programs including CoC Program.

+ Managed Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) Supportive Services for
Veteran Famities (SSVF) TA team.

+ Successfully managed over 25 housing subsidy grants for over 1,400
people with severe disabilities in a rural state.

« Facilitated Maine's Balance of State CoC and Data/HMIS subcommittee
to successfully prepare seven annual CoC submissions, all of which
received high scores from HUD.

» Led a three-year research project documenting the effectiveness of PSH
for homeless persons with disabilities in Maine,

Melany Mondetlo, M.B.A., Senior Consultant

Utilizing CoC systems
such as e-snaps, Sage,
HMIS to complete
federal requirements

Education

M.B.A. /2019 (Public
St. Joseph's College of
Maine

B.A. /1996

(Psychology)
U. of Southern Maine

i
TAC

TECHMICAL ASSISTANCE
COLLABORATIVE



Other Professional Experience
Shalom House, Inc. (Portland, ME) 2001 - 2010

Statewide Grant Coordinator

Ms. Mondello coordinated 25 federal Shelter+Care (S+C) grants as well as the state-funded Bridging
Rental Assistance Program transitional housing subsidy program. Under her management the S+C
program for individuals and families with disabilities experiencing homelessness grew by 500 units. She
successfully worked with the state of Maine to triple the subsidy funding available to persons with a
severe menta! iliness. She was responsible for sysiem development and monitoring nonprofit
subrecipients of HUD McKinney-Vento funds awarded to the Maine Department of Health and Human
Services. Ms. Mondello served as co-chair of Maine's Balance of State CoC and was involved in
Homeless Management information System (HMIS) implementation.

Ingraham, Inc. (South Portland, ME) 1997 - 2001

Quality Improvement Coordinator :

Ms. Mondello provided oversight for the agency’s mental health programs to ensure compliance with state
and federal regulations. She developed procedure, policy, and data systems to manage program efficacy
and compliance with both HUD and Medicaid regulations. She was responsible for performing site reviews
and explaining regulation and administrative policy to stakeholders both internally and externally. She also
trained crisis hotline volunteers.

Melany Mondello, M.B.A., Senior Consultant _ Page2of2




Douglas Tetrault

Senior Consultant

Skills & Expertise

Profile

Mr. Tetrault has over 14 years of experience working on issues related to
affordable housing and homelessness, with particular focus on permanent
supportive housing (PSHY); rapid rehousing (RRH); homelessness
prevention; diversion and rapid exit strategies; homeless system mapping;
equitable service design; coordinated entry implementation; and the
integration of health care and income supparts for-vulnerable populations.

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. (Boston, MA)

Senijor Consultant (2023 - Present)
Senior Associate (2018 — 2023)
Associate (2014 - 2018)

Leads and manages consultation and TA an policy and best practices in
solutions to homelessness and institutionalization of people with disabilities
with a range of clients, including federal, state, and local government,
national associations, philanthropy, and other stakeholders.

Recent Projects

+ Manages a mulliyear TA contract for the Department of Veterans Affairs
(VA) Homeless Program Office across multiple subcontractors, including
direct provision of TA services.

« Supports a multivear TA contract for the VA Supporiive Services for
Veteran Families (SSVF) program across multipie subcontractors,
including direct provision of TA services.

+ Supports the VA Grant & Per Diem (GPD) program to design and
enhance performance outcomes in various models of interim housing.

« Delivers TA on behalf of VA, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD}, and private clients with a focus on trainings,
consultation, and peer ieaming forums in muitiple states and localities.

+ Leads planning and logistical implementation of large-scale events, often
occurring in multiple sites simuitaneously, for diverse audiences.

« Creates tools and training materials for homeless assistance programs.

+ Represents TAC on Veteran-related workgroups and conferences, and
provides expertise related to Veterans' issues, rapid rehousing program
design, homelessness prevention, housing problem solving, diversion

and rapid exit strategies, the Homeless Management Information System

(HMIS), data analysis, and coordinated entry. 5
« Works with Continuums of Care {CoCs) on operations, planning, and
stakeholder coordination.

Dougtas Tetrault, Senior Consuitant

L

ESG & CoC programs
SSVF, GPD, HUD-
VASH, & other VA-
funded programs
Developing customized
training & support
curricula for local, state,
& federal agencies
Coordinated entry
design, evaluation, &
management

Training & event
planning, web-based
training, & virtual peer
learning environments

Education

B.S. /2008
(Professional Writing)
Champlain College,
Burlington, VT

=
TAC

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
COLLABORATIVE



Other Professional Experience

hvlassachusetts Shelter & Hoﬁsing Alliance 2009 - 2014 -

Program Manager

« Responsible for the administration of over $9M in publicly funded contracts providing nearly 1,000 units
of shelter and housing across a broad range of homeless services.

+ Monitored program performance and oulcomes through direct onsite evaluations, data collection and
reporting, and ongoing provider technical assistance.

« Developed and maintained partnerships and coordinated efforts among a wide variety of stakeholders
including public, private, and philanthropic entities. )

+ Project liaison for first “pay for success” initiative in the U.S. to focus on chronic homelessness;
provided technical support and economic modeling for pilot.

» Assisted in compiling organizational policy and capacity-building initiatives.

The Mind Trust (Indianapolis, IN) 2 2009

Special Projects Manager

Be the Change, Inc. {Boston, MA) 2008 - 2009

Executive Assistant

U.S. Senate Judiciary Committee 2008

Judiciary Intern

Douglas Tetrault, Senior Consultant Page 20f 2




Chelsea Mahoney

Senior Associate

Profile

Chelsea Mahoney has experience working with affordable housing and homelessness programs with
nonprofit, local, and state organizations with a focus on rapid rehousing, homelessness prevention, and
permanent supportive housing programs, specifically targeting Veterans and other vulnerable
populations.

SkKills & Expertise Education
+ Emergency Solutions Grant program B.S.W./2015
« Permanent supportive housing Johnson C. Smith U., Charlotte, NC

» SSVF and other VA housing programs
« Program and project management
+ Content development & facilitation/training

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. (Boston, MA) 2024 - Present

Associate

Manages and provides consultation, training, support, and expertise on federal housing and
homelessness programs. Works with state and local public entities on strategic planning and systems
transformation initiatives.

Other Professional Experience

Passage Home, Inc. {(Raleigh, NC) , 2020 - 2023
Dirgctor of Programs (2023}
Veteran Sarvices Program Manager (2021 — 2022)
Veteran Services Case Manager (2020 - 2021}

As Director of Programs:

« Secured and managed more than $2M in grant-funded programs including those from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA), and
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Community Services Block Grant program.

« Developed and monitored annual program budgets working with finance and operations team.

+ Assured compliance of all program grants and reports to appropriate funding agencies, both public and
private, within grant deadlines and guidelines.

+ Provided data and prepared and distributed reports, correspondence, and documents in a timely
manner as required by funding agencies.

« Monitored agency progress towards programmatic goals and outcomes.

» Collaborated with senior leadership team on strategy and direction to improve program operations and
efficiency.

+ Oversaw the development and implementation of four programs with 20 staff. @5

« Provided day to day supervision and operational support to all direct service staff and ing
volunteers. "Tn C

[ . TECHMNICAL ASSISTANCE
Chelsea Mahoney, Senior Associate COLLABORATIVE



« Helped to develop and sustain the infrastructure, culture, and competencies necessary to establish
and mainiain Passage Home as a locally, state and nationally respected community development
corporation. i

» Supported Chief Executive Officer with daily operational functions.

As Veteran Services Program Manager:

» Managed annual program budget of over $500,000.

-« Tracked key performance indicators and grant expenditures.
« Caollaborated with community and federal stakeholders.

s Led interdisciplinary team to address programmatic, agency, and community barriers.
« Increased staffing by 50% to address program need.

« Launched three new services within program.

+ Increased client enroliment time by 27% through process improvement.

» Conducted staff onboarding and continuous coaching/development training.

o Developed program implementation and strategic plan.

2

As Veteran Services Case Manager:

« Coordinated individualized housing discharge plans.

» Documented case.notes daily and coordinated follow-up.

+ Maintained current knowledge of housing market trends and resources.
+ Recruited landlords to provide suitable and affordable units.

« Assessed clients for program eligibility.

Volunteers of America Chesapeake & Carolinas {Durham, NC) F 2021 -.2022

Supportive Servicas for Veteran Families (SSVF) Case Manager

« Developed understanding of low-income housing supports.

» Established outreach plan to target SSVF population.

« Conducted housing and comprehensive supportive services assessments.

« Coordinated services between community partners and participants.

« Developed placement, stabilization and follow-up plans with SSVF participants.

« Completed data reporting in Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and other systems as
required, i

Mecklenburg County Mohbile Crisis {Charlotte, NC) 2018°- 2019

e Carie 3 ———— L —

Phone Counselor

« Received crisis calls from police, behavioral health, crisis lines, and consumers.
« Effectively triage a call to the appropriate level of care.

« Conducted a lethality assessment.

« Effectively deescalated a client in crisis, over the phone.

« Developed pﬁsis plan,

« Assigned follow up task depending on crisis leve!,

Chelsea Mahoney, Senior Associate , ' Page 20f3



lAtrium Health {Charlotte, NC) } 2016 - 2018
Health Advocate

« Participated in multidisciplinary health care coordination for patients' chronic health conditions.

« Provided education and training to patients.

s Completed health care goal-setting and monitored progress towards goal.

« Assisted in patient health care coordination and connection 10 appropriate community resources.
« Advocated for self-management.

Cheisea Mahoney, Senior Associate Page 30f 3



Phillip Allen, M.A.

Senior Associate

Skills & Expertise

Profile

Mr. Allen has over 15 years of experience working on issues associated
with ending and preventing homelessness. He has expertise in rural
homelessness solutions; accessing Veteran services; implementing rapid
rehousing (RRH); housing problem-solving and homelessness prevention
programs; and buitding community collaboration to find systemic solutions
to help vulnerable populations.

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. (Boston, MA)

Senior Associate (2023 — Present}; Associate 11 {2021 - 2023);
Associate (2017 - 2021)

Manages and provides consultation, training, support, and expertise on
~ federal housing and homelessness programs. Works with state and local
public entities on strategic planning and systems transformation initiatives.

Recent Projects

+« Managers a multivear TA contract for the Department of Veteran Affairs
(VA) Supportive Services for Veteran Families {SSVF) program.

« Facilitates planning, implementatjoh, and action planning processes for
communities to address homelessness among Veterans,

» Develops and facilitates communities of practice for the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Department of
Veterans Affairs (VA) on topics such as housing problem solving, RRH
core components, program management, coordination of VA resources,
Continuum of Care (CoC) governance, and health care navigation.

+ Provides direct TA on Veleran homelessness to Balance of State CoCs
in WV, ME, and VT, and to the Chittenden County (VT), Missoula (MT),
Denver (CO) Metropolitan Area, Seattle (WA), Portland {(OR), and
Fairbanks (AK) CoCs. '

« Supported the development and implementation of an online learning
management system for new SSVF program managers.

« Delivers tailored training and TA to state, county, municipal, and other
systems officials; communily-based organizations, including HUD
grantees; and agency staff to promote the adoption of equity-based
practices, policies, and p'rocedures.

« Provides direct TA to CoCs in HUD Region 2 and coordinates efforts for
regional Points of Contact in the same region.

+ Provides subject matter experlise on coordinating Legal Aid Services to
Veterans struggling with housing insecurity.

Phillip Allen, M.A., Senior Associate

Rural homelessness
solutions

Leveraging Legal Aid
services for homeless &
vulnerable populations
Facilitating communities
of practice & peer-to-
peer learning sessions
By-name lists & HMIS
Facilitation of race
equity conversations
with federal partners

Education

M.A. / 2008 (Sociology)
- San Diego State U.

(San Diego, CA)

B.A. /2004 (Sociology

& Psychology)

Adams State College

(Alamosa, CO)

5
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Other Professional Experience

Prehle Street {Portland, ME) 2011 - 2017

Program Coordinator, Supportive Services for Veteran Families (SSVF} Grant (2011 - 2017}

As the statewide Program Coordinatar for Preble Street's $1.6 million SSVF grant in Maine, Mr. Allen was
responsible for complying with contract requirements, evaluating program successes, and developing and
maintaining program policies and procedures. Under his direction, the grant was recognized regionally

and nationally as high-performing, both for its provision of services and for its data quality and strategic
pianning based on that data.

lgouthern Maine Community College (South Portland, ME) i 2011 - Present]
Adjunct Insiructor

In “Sociology 100" courses, instructs non-traditional students in the basic concepts and research methods
used in the field of sociology.

[City of Portland (ME) 2009 - 2011

Hurnan Services Counselor, Homelessness Prevention & Rapid Rehousing Program

Coordinated resources and provided housing assistance to targeted homeless clients with mental iliness

and co-occurring disorders; identified homeless clients, assessed their needs, linked them to resources,
and monitored and evaluated their services and supports.

Phillip Allen, M.A., Senior Associate Page 2 of 2



KEY PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Contractor Name:

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

ANNUAL
AMOUNT PAID ANNUAL
NME =IGRITITEE FROM THIS SALARY
, CONTRACT

Melany Mondello Senior Consultant $8,000.00 $150,469.00
Oouglas Tetrault Senior Consultant $5,000.00 $143,222.00
Chelsea Mahoney Senior Associate $3,000.00 $108,150.00
Phil Allen Senior Associate $4,000.00 $123,600.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Loti A. Weaver : 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Cozmlssdoner 603-271.9544  1-800-852-3348 Ext. 9544
’ Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964  www.dhhe.nh gov
Katjs 5 Foa
Directir
April 10, 2024
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundil
State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

EQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Heatth and Human Services, Division for Behavloral Health,
to enter into 8 Sole Source -amendment to an existing contract with Technical’ Assistarice
Collaborative, Inc. (VC# 342192), Boston, MA, to continue to provide the Department with
assistance in developing a Continuum of Care (CoC) System and Coordinated Entry System for
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), in addition to- prowdmg general
homeless system assessments’ and supporl, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $20,000 from $20,000 to $40,000 and by éxtending the
completion date from June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2025, effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and
Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Coundll on September 20,-2023,
item #44, %

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority
to adjust budget fine items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and

justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS8, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS 8 HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER

PROGRAM

State Increased B
Fiocal | O%8) | classTite | oD | DU | tDecressea) | LR
Year Amount 8
Grants for
2024 | 074-500585 Pub Asst 42309685 $20,000 $0 $20,000
and Relief
Grants for !
2025 | 074-500585 Pub Asst N/A $0 $20,000 $20.000
and Relief
Total $20,000 $20,000 $40,000
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Mis Excellency, Govemer Christopher T. Sununu
) and tha Honorable Coundll
Page 2al2

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor is the only HUD-
approved technical assistance provider located in New England that can provide onsite technical
assistance as needed to support the ongoing CoC coordination, project evaluation, project
monitoring, and other system improvement activilies as specified in the CoC Planning Grant.

- The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing support to the
Department for the development of the CoC Governance including system analysis and
ovaluation’ to ensure afignment with HUD's requirements and HMIS data standards. The

Contractor will continue to assist with CoC Systems improvement through the development of “*

monitering criteria for all CoC projects and systems as required by HUD. The Contractor will assist
with the development of updated policias and procedures, end monitoring tools, to incorporate
newly funded Continuum of Care project types including the Rural Supportive Services Only
(RSSO) projects for street outreach, and the Youth Homelessness Demonstration Program
(YHDP) grants which will no longer be in a demonstration period as of September 30, 2024. TAC
will provide guidance on how to fully incorporate the RSSO and YHOP policies and procedures
into the overall Continuum of Care policies and procedures. TAC will also pravide a training series
for the Continuum of Care on housing focused services. This training series will be incorporated
into the Training Library that'is being developed for the Council on Housing Stability, which will
be available to all homeless services providers in NH.

The Department will monitof sarvices by reviewing monthly reports provided by the
Contractor.- '

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.2. of the
original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) -
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to.
renew services for one (1) of the four (4) years available. ) :

Should the Governor and Council not autherize this request, the Batance of the State CoC
program will not have technical assistance or support, which is necessary to ensure the CoC is
meeting all HUD requirements while improving the system of homeless services. The CoC is
tasked with ending homefessness through constant evaluation, monitoring, and system
improvement. In addition, not authorizing this request could result in a diminished HUD
performance score and the possible elimination of existing housing programs statewide. The
funds in this program are dedicated to the purposes described and cannot be used for diract cliem
services. - |

_ Area served: Statewide. o
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN NH0156L1T002200.

In the event the Federal Funds bacome no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. J

Respectiull submitteci,

]
Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health ond Human Services’ Mission i to join communities and fonilies
in providing opportunities for cititens to achieve health and independence.
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State of Nev\; Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care Planning Grant Technical Assistance contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human Services ("State" or’
“Depariment") and Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. ("the Contractor”),

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govermnor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2023 (Item #44), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to'Form P-37, General Provisions, the Coniract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties herelo agree to amend as follows: - "

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
_June 30, 2025 ’
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;
$40,000 - !
3. Niodify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1., to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100%Federal funds, as awarded on March 28, 2023, and July 28, 2023, By the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Continuum of Care Program, ALN
14.267, FAINs NHO133L1T002100 and NHO156L.17002200.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shali be for services provided in the fulfillment of this Agree'mént as specified-in
Exhibit B Scope of Services, and in accordance wuth Exhibit C 1 Budget and Exhibit C-2
Budget, Amendment #1.

5. Add Exhibit C-2 Budget, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference

hereln
Fl
D3
Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. A-5-1.3 ! Contractor Initials L
4/37/2008
* . §5-2024-0BH-23-TECHN-01-A01 Page 1 0f 3 Dais

V11223
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full forcé and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF.ﬁlhe parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire O
Department of Health and Human Serwces

CocuSignad by
4/17/2024 [: o S. Fou
CTO0 YADAF], .
Date ' Name; Katja S. Fox
Title: .
. Director

-

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc.

. 5
Docu3igned by,

4/17/2024 , Eu.wu. Martsur

- DOCECIS8D01B4R0...
Date : Name: Kevin Martone

Title: N :
Executwve pirector
)
i

Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. A-S5-13

§5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01-A01 Page 2 of 3
v, 7.12.23 i
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A

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to
form, substance, and execution, :

OFFICF OF THE AT;FORNEY GENERAL

Docuiigned by:
4/19/2024 oo QM-"M
TABI 4041480,
Date Name:Robyn Guarino
Titie: ;
Attorney
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councif of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name; ) ‘
. Title:
1
Technital Assistance Collaborative, Inc. A-S-1.3
55-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01-A01 Page 3 of 3

v. 7.12.23 =
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE '
" DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH,
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301.

T 6032719544 .1-800-852-3345 Ext 9544 -
Fax: 603:1714332 TDD Aécess: 1-800-738-2964 www.dbha.ob.gov

‘Kats 5. Fox,

Director
August 31, 2023
His Exceliency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu, '
and the Honorabte Councll
State House '
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
: REQUESTED ACTION

- Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behdvioral Health,
to.enter.into a Sote Source contract with Technical Assistance Collaborative, Inc. (VC #342192),
Boston, MA, In the amount of $20,000 to provide the Department with assistance in daveloping a
‘Continuiim of Care (CoC) system -ard Coordinated Entry System for the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), in addition to conducting general honidless system
assessments and eypport, wilh the option to renew for up fo four (4) additional years, efective
October 1, 2023, upon Govemor and Council approval, through June 30, 2024.'100% Federal
Funds. ' ' -

- Funds ‘are available in he following accaurit for State Fiscal Yéiir 2024, with the aithority
.to adjust.budget line items within the price limitdtion through the Budget Office, f-neéded -and
justified. "~ - -, - o s
05-58:42-423010-79270000 'HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT: OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES; HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM -

[oduts T Class?. "]~ CiassTite | yob Numbor | Total Arourt
T ..-2!02 ‘-,-. | 9?{%59_5,5.8'5: | ,__Granta fo;_.i Z;,;lg,f_ASS_t.a'nd . NA ?".szb,'o'oo,
o il i Toul .,-. .'szo.qo'o
— ———t -

This regitest |5 §6lb:Source because the Techical Assistance Collaborative is the.only

HUD approved techinical assistance provider that is logated:In New England snd can provide

onsite f_.trechnlpa_l assistance. as’ needed for the purposes ‘of - supporting trle.-bngoing_co'c_
_chfdiﬁagion, project evaluation, proje_c_t_,_rponi_loﬁng,"anq other system improvement:activities:as,
glided b the, CoC Pidnning Giant, - -
. The purpose of this request is t_bprg?i;ie_‘a‘ﬁs’is@_ance_ to the Q_epart'tr;eng wjih'dévelqplng_.a
.CoC system and Coordinated Entry System, ‘in addition to conducting genefal homeless system.
assessments and suppors. ' 3 :

_ The'Coritractof Wwill provide Siippart to‘the Department:in thie- devélopment of the.CoC:
Governance, incliding system analysts, aid evaluation in ‘order to ensure alignment with HUD's
requirements, and 'HMIS -data standards. The Codtractor shall assist with CoC- System

. improvement through the dévelopment of. monitaring:criteria for-all.CoC. pro)ec_fs_._and_s’_ys’;em ‘as
' required by HUD. S B '

#
(T
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His Excallency, Govemor Cheistophet T. Sununy
and the Honorable Counil .
Pege2of2 - . , L ; * w :
The Contractor will conduct planning activities to ensure the current Coordinated Entry
System is aligned with federal policies and regulations. The Contractor will also create project
and system evaluations (n. accordance with the federal CoC regulations. Additionally, the
Contractor will provide technical assistance to the Depastment for the annual CoC Program

application as assigned by HUD. : .
) The Deparimenl will monitor services by reviewing monthly reports provided by the
Contractor. g | ' :

As referencéd in Exhibil A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.2, of the
attached agreement, the parties have the oplion to extend the agreemeni for up to four (4)

2

additional years, contingent upon saiisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement:

of the parties and Governar and Council approval.

Should the Goverhor and Council not authorize this request, the Balance of State CoC

- program will not have technical assistance or suppont that is needed to ensure thé CoC is meeting
all of HUD's requirements while improving the system of homeless services. The CoC is tasked
with ending homelessness through constant evaluation, monitoring and system improvement.
This could result in a diminished HUD performance score and the possible elimination of some
existing housing programs slatewids. The funds In this program are dedicaled to the purpose
described, and canno! be used for direct client services. . .

Area served: Statewide.

- Souirce of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN# NH0156!.1T002200
gnd NH0133L1T7002100. ‘ . :

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer availabie, additional General Funds
" will not be requested to support this program. : - ’ "

Respectiully submftt'ed, S

s s e

e

-l

Lori A. Weaver

; B - R Commissioner
."1"
= ':!..
o I
% ~ I I
= x
a7 .
" & 3
W F i i
'I_ , £
=i ol %" -l "
. L,
c .‘ ” am
v \ P
b M
i
4 . - » 3 ,
: &
il B .
h “The Departntent of Healih and Human Serviers’ Mission is to j'o]‘n communilies and families

" in providing opportunities for cilizent fo achieve health and indtpendende. o

2
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F ORM NUMBER P—37 (version 2/23/202:
Subject: Continyum of Care Planning Grant Technical Assislance ($5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01) i

Notice: This agreement and all of its artochments shall become public upon submission 10 Governor and
Exceutive Council for approval. Any informstion that is private, confidential or proprictary must - )
be clearly identificd to the sgency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. o k

_ AGREEMENT
The Statc of New Hampshirc and the Contractor hercby mutually sgrec as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

) s ] . iy
1. IDENTIFICATION. b

1.1 State Agency Name -

New Hampshire D'cpartmcm of Health and Human Services

1.2 Stalc Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 033013857

1.3 Contractor Name 4 A
‘I v - = . -
Technicol Assisiance Colldborative, Inc.

1

1.4 Contractor Address

15 Coun Square L
11th Floor ' +
Boston. MA 02108

1.5 Contractor Phonc 1.6 Account Unit and Closs

Number

617-266-5657 05-95-42-423010-79270000

i B .
N R

1.7 Compiction Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2024 $20,000 )

.

1.9 Comraciing Officer for Siatc Agency
Roben W..Moorc, Director

1.10 Stme Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271.9631

-'."

1.1+" Contenctor Signature

1.12 Name and Tulc of Contractor Signatory
Kevin Martone

Executive Director

* " xatja s. Fox .

1.14 "Nomc and Title of State Agency Slgnnlory

Director d 3

Director, On:

By: © .
1.16 Appmvul by the, Auomey Gcncral (Form, Substgnce and E.\ccunon) {if applicable) o
0“-9{5/'2023
vemor and Exceutive Council (if applicable) f
G&C ltem aumber: G&C Mceting Date:
q f 4 R
: s i :
by ' B
L D3 .
"5 R ' Pagel of 4 kM
. . ) Contraclor Initials :
X ' ‘Dale

s

9/5/T0I3 "~
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siatc of New
Hompshire, acting through the "agency identificd in block 1.1
(“State"), engagts contractor identified inblock §.3 (“Comractor“)
to perform, and the Camroctor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or bath, |dcm|l'cd and tore panicularly described in the

attachcd EXHIBIT B which is incorporsied hergin by reference

(“Scmccs ]

kN EFFECTIVE DATUCOMPLETION OF SERVICES

kN Ngtwnhsmn@ung any provision of this-Agrcement 1o the
contrary, and subject 1o thc approval of the Govemor and
Exccutive Council of the Staic of New Hampshire, if applicable,

" thi§ Agreement, end ell obligitions of the partics hercunder, shall

. become effective on the daic the Governor and Executive Council

epprove this Agreement, unless no such approvnl is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Siate Agency as shown in block 1.13
(“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior (o the Effccuv

Datc, all Scrvices performed by the Contractor prior 1o the
Effective Daic shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effeciive, the -
State shall havc no ‘linbility to the Conlraclor including withou
limitation, any .obligation to pay the Contractor -for any costs
incurred or Services performed. .

3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Complction Datc
spccﬂ‘ucd in block L.7.

4. c_onomomp, NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding sny provision of this Agrcement to the contrary,
sll obllgauons of the Stale hereunder, including, withoul limitation,

* . the continuance of payments hercunder, arc contingenl upon the

availability and continued dppropristion of funds. In no event sholl
the State be liable for any paymenis hercunder in éxcess of such
aveilable appropriaied funds. 1n the cvent of a reduction of

‘termination of appropriated funds by any siate.or federal legislative

or cxecutive action that reduccs, climinates or othenwise modifics’
the approprintion or avmlab:luy of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in wholc,orin pan,

‘the State shall have'the right 10 withhold payment until such funds

become, available, if cver, and shall have the rnghl to reduce or
terminate the Scrvices under, this Agreement immediately upon

. giving'the Contracior notice of such reduction or termination. The

Statc shall noet be required to transfer funds from any other eccount
or source to ihe' Account ideniificd in btock 1.6 in the event l'unds
in that Account are reduced or unavaitable, )

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment,-and terms of payment
arc ‘identificd and . morc. parlu:ulnrly described in EXHIBIT Cc
which'is mcorpomted herein by reference,

5.2 Notwithstariding sny provision “in this Agreenient to the
contrary, end notwithsianding uncxpcclcd ciccumstances, in no

cvent'shall the total of al! paymenis authoruzcd or actually made

hereundey, exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in block 1.8. The

hcrcol' and shall be the only and the complclc compensanon 1o the
Contractor for the Scivices.

5.3 The State rescrves the right to offset from any omounts
othenwise payable 10 the Contracior under this Agreement those
liquidaled amounts rcquired or permitied by ‘N.H. RSA 80 7
through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law.

5.4 The Stare's Liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monctery damages not to execed the total fees paid. The Contraclor
sgrecs thal irhas an adequote remedy.at law' for any breach of this

Agreement by the State and hercby waives any right to specific.

performance or othcr cquimblc remedics against the S\mc. :

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
RECULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conncction with the performance of the Services, the
Conirzclor -shall comply with ali =spplicable * statutcs, lows,
-regulations, und orders of fodersl, state, county or municipal
euthoritics which impose ony obligation or duty upon the
Centracior, including, but not limited 10, civil rights and_cqual

employment opponuniuy Iaws and the Govemor's order-on Respect -

and Civility in the Workplace, Exceutive order 2020-01. .o

_addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monics of the

‘United Siates, the Contrector shall comply with all federel
exceutive orders, rules, regulations and statuics, ond with any rules,
fegulations and guidclines s the Siate or the United Statcs issuc to
implement these regulntions. The Contractor shall aiso comp!y
with all spplicable intellectual property Jaws.

6.2 During the term of this Agrcement, the Controctor shall not -

discriminate against cmployces or applicants for employment
because of age, scx, sexual oricntation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mecntal disability, religiouy greed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender cxpression, and will take affirmative
action (0 prevent such discrimination, untess exempi by stave or
federal law. The Contracior shall ensure any subconiractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements, .

6.3 No paymenis or tronsfers of value by Contracior or its

representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be .

madc which have the purpose or ¢ffeet of public or commereial
bribery, or aceeptance of or acquicscence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper mcans of obteining busincss.

6.4. ‘The Conlracioragrees 10 permil the State or United States
sccess to any of the Contractor's books, rccords end aécounts for
the purpose of ascengining complignce with this Agreement and
all rules, regulntions and orders periaining to lh:q covenants, terms
and condilicms of this Agreement. ; '
1. PFRSONNEL 4 s .

1. 1T he Comrnctoc shall a1 its own cxpense provide all pcrsonncl
necessary 1o perform the Séivices. The Contractor wargants that all
Jpersonnel engaged in the Scrvices shall be qualificd to perfonn thé
"Scrvices, and shall be propcrly lic€nséd and otherivise-authorized
10 do so undcr all applicable laws.

7.2 The Contraciing Officer spccifcd Jn block 1.9, or any
sceessor, shall be the State's point of ‘cdntatt pertsining to thig

paynicnt by the Stdte of the contrict price shall be the only and lhc Agrccmcm
complete reimburséiment to ‘the Comisétor for all cxpenscs, af i 5
whatcver falure incuired by the Contracior in the performance - . bs
o o w Page 20f 4 | kM
o 3 Contractor Initials —=—=

. Date
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULTIREMEDIES

8.0 Any onc or morc of the fallowing acts or-omissions of the

Contracior shall constitute an event of d:fnull hcrcundcr (“Event

of Default™):

* 8.1.1 foilure 1o perform the Services sausfac:only or on schedule;
8.1.2 foilurc to submit any report required hereunder; and/or:
8.1.3 failurc vo perform any othcr covenans, term or condition of
this Agrcement,

*8.2 Upon the occurrence of sny Event of Default, the Swic moy

. take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor 8 writtcn noticc spcmfymg the Eveni of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of »
greater ar lesser spcclﬁcanon of time, thirty (30} calendar days
from the datc of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agrccrncnl cffective two (2) calcndar doys
afier giving the Conlrmor notice of tcemination;

.. 8.2.2 give the Contractor 8 wrinien notice specifying the Evcm of.

".Default and * suspending il payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering thet the portion ‘of the contract price which
would othenwisc accruc to.the Contractor during the peried from
the datc of such notice uniil such time 2§ the State deiermines that
. the Coniractor has cured the Event_of Defoult shall never be paid
to the Contracior;

8:2.3 give the Contractor a wrilicn notice specifying the Event of

Dcfault and sct off agninst any other obligatiens the Statc may owe:

10 the Contractor ary demoges the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; end/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor o wrilien notice specifying the Event of
Defouls, treet the Agrcc_mcnl g3 breachcd, 1cimingic the Agreement
and pursue any of its remédics ot law or in equity, or both,

5. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paregraph &, the Swuic may, at its solc
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in wholc-or in
pan, by thirty (30) calendar.days written notice 1o the Contracior
- that the State.is excrcising its opuon to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the cvernt of zn carly terminaiion of this Agrcement for eny

reason other than the completion.of the Services, the Contractor .

shall, at the State's discretion, deliver 1o the Contracting Officer,
not later than Mifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
‘termination, o repont (“Terminaiion Repon™) describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contrect price camcd, 1o and
including the date of termination. In uddmon a1 the Sialc's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fiftecn (15) colendar days
of notice of carly termination, dcvclop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agrecment.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIPIDISCI,OSURE

JO.1 As used in this Ageccmeni, the word - Property” shnll mean
all datn, inforination snd things developed or obtained during the
performance of, "or acquired or dcvclopcd by rcason of, this
Agreement, mcludmg, bul not tiniited 10, oll studics, rcports, filcs,
formiulat, .surveys,  maps, chants, sound recordingg, videf
recordings, pictorial rcproducuons drawings, analyses, gruphnc
representations, compulér programs, ‘computér printouts, notes,
leiters, memorarida, papees, and documicnls, all whether finished or

unfinished. -

10.2 All date and any Property which has been received from the -
Stote,.or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retumned
1o the State ypon demend or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason. i .

10.3 Disclosure of ‘dats, information ond othier records shall be
govemned by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other spplicable taw.
Disclosure réquircs prior writlen approval 6f the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agrecment the Contractor is in oll respects an
independent contractor, and is reithee an agent nor an employee of
the State. Ncither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employecs,
agents or members shatl have authority to bind the Srate or regeive
ony beaefits, workers’ compensation. or other emoluments
provided by the Statc 1o its cmployces,

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor sha)l provide the Siate written notice ot least fifteen |
(15) colendar days before any proposed assignment, defegation, or
other “transfer of any interest® in this Agreemenr.  No such
ossignment, delegation, or othee trensfer shall be ¢flective without

_ihe writicn consent of the State.

12,2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Chenge of Control shall
constitute assignmen). “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a tronsection or series of related transactions in
which & third party, together with its afMiliatck, becomes the direcy
or indirect owner of fifty percent.(50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar cquity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantialiy ol) of the assets of
the Contracior.

12.3 None onhc Scrvices sholl be subcontracted by the Contraclor
without prior written notice end conscni of the State.

12.4 The Siste is cntitled to copics of all subcontracts and
essignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in o subconiracl or 8n assignment agreement 10 which it
is nol 8 party. '

§3. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contrector shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmicss the Staie, its officers, and employees
from and ogainst pll ‘nctions, claims, damoges, demands,
judgments, fincs, linbilities, losscs, and other cxpenses, including, .
without' limitation, rensonable altomceys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement dircctly or indirectly arising from death,
personal  injury, property  damage,  iniclicctual  propeny
infringenient; or other claims assericd againsl the Stale, its officers,

or cmployees causcd by the, acts or omissions of ncghgcncc

réckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
cimployces, agents, or Subcontractors. Thc State shall not be liable
for nny -cosis mmrrcd by the Commctor acising under lh:s
paragraph 13. Notwithsianding the foregoing, nothing hcrcgn
containcd shall be decmed 10 constilule a waiver of the Siatg’s
sovereign immunily, which immunity. is hcrcby reseérved 1o the

Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the'temination

of this Agrccmcnt

o

3 i
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14. INSURANCE

14.1 The Contractor shall, a1 its sole cxpcnsc gbtein and
r.ontmuously maintain in force, 2nd shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obmm end maintain m force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general linbility insurance against all claims of
“ddily injury, desth or property damage, in amounts of not less than
§1,000,000 per occurrence and 52, 000000 aggregale or cxcess;
and i /
14.1.2 special cause of loss covcrage form covcnng all Prapeny
subject 10 subparagraph 10.2 hercin, in an amount not Jcss than
.80% of the wholc rcplacement valug of the Property.

14.2 The policics described in subparograph 14,1 herein shatl be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Sute of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanment of Insurence, and issued
by insurers licensed in-the State of New Hampshire.

(4.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the ‘Coniracting Officer
identificd in block .9, or any, successor, a certificatc(s) of
insurance for 8l insurance required under this Agreement. At the

request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contragtor 1

shall prowdc cenificate(s) of insurance -for all rencwal(s) of

- insurance required under (hns agreement. The cerificate(s) of

insurance and any rencwals thercol shall be auachcd and arc
incorporaicd herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSAT!ON.
15.1 By signing 1his agrecment, the Contractor agrees, cenifics and.
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of NH. RSA chapter 281-A Workcrs
- Compensation”).
15.2 To the'exient the Conlmlor is subject to the requirements of
N H. RSA chapicr 281:A, Contrector shall mainain, and requirc
any subcontractor or assignec to sccure and maintain, paymenl of
Workers' Compensation in conncction with activities which the
person proposes to undenake pursuant te this Agrccmcm The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officér identified i block
1.9, or any successor, praof .of Workers' Compensation in the
ingnner destribed in N.H. RSA chagier 281-A and any dpplicable
rencwal(s) thercof, which she]l be attached and aré incorporsted
hercin by réference. THE State ‘shail it be rcspons1b!c for payment
of asiy Workers”:Compensalion premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Coniractor, or Rny. subcontractor or employee’ of

, Contractor, +which might arise under apphcablc State of New

- Hampshiré Workcrs' Compensation laws in conncction with the
& performance of the Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A Suaic's failure (o enforce its Tights
with respect to any smglc or conlinuing breach of this Agreement
shalt not aci 8s o waiver of the right of the State'té laier enforee any
such righis.or to enforcé any othcr or any subsequent brench.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a p'\ny "heceto 1o the: Olhcr party shall
be deemed 10 have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by ceriificd innil, postage prepaid, i n Umtcd Siates Past
"Office nddressed.to the parties at the eddresscs gwcn in blocks 1.2
and 1,4, hcmm

Page d ofd

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or

discharged only by ‘an instrument in writing signed by the panies |

hereta and only afier approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Exccutive Council of the State of
New Hamgshire unless no such opprovel is required under the
circumstances pursuant 1o Siaic low, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.,

19.1 This Agreement shall be goverhed, interpreted and construed -

in accordance with the Inws of the State af Ncw Hempshire except
where the Federsl supremacy clause ﬂ:qunms otherwise,  The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the

pertics 1o cxpress their, mutual inlent, and no rule of construction

“ghalt be applicd against or in favor of any party.:.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agrcement, including the

breach or alicged breach thercof, may not be submitted to binding

arbitration, bul must, insicad, be brought and maintsined in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive _|ur|sd|cnon thereol,

1.

20 CONFLICTING TERMS. [n the cvent of a conflict between

" the terms of this P:37 form (s modified in EXHIBIT A).2nd any .

other portion of this Agreement including any:sitachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXKIBIT A) shall contral.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agrecment is being entered into for-

the sote bengfit of the pantics hereto, and nolhing hercin, cxpress or
implied, is intended 10 or will confer any legel or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person,

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreemént are for
reference purposcs only, nnd the words contained thercin shall in

no way bt held 1o cxplain, modify, amplify or aid in the

interpretation, construction or mcunmg of .the provisions of this
Agreement.

1. SPECIAL 'PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions sct fonh in the auached EXHIBIT A arc mcorporntcd
herein by refcrénce.

=
24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affilietes, shall, arits‘'own cost and cxpense, exccule any
additional ‘documents and 1ake such furiher actions as may b

“reasonably required 1o carry oul the provisions of this Agreement

and givé cffcct'lo the transacuions coniémplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILATY. Inihe cvent any oflhe provisions of this

Agreement are held by n court of tompclcm jurlSdlClIOl’\ to be -

contrary 1o any staic or federal law, the remaining provisions of
lhlS Agreement will rcmmn in full Force and effcct.

16, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This, Agrgcmcm, which sy be
cxceuled in a number of counterpans, cach of which shall be
deemed an original, ‘constilules the entirg  npreement and

undersianding between the pantics, nnd supersedes all prior .

agreements and understnndings with respect 1o the subjcct maitee

) hereof: =

tad W
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Contraclor Initials

DatB/S/ZOES

i
"



- DocuSign Envelops 1D: E45040F7-ADZ2-45C.C-M EQ-7ACBATIZAESD R

LDUCUD Y CIWTHORG |L, WAC 1Y VDL~ SN DL P T M DI OC T

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
Continuum of Care Planning Grant Technical Assistance
& = ® EXHIBIT A

fs

Ja

g Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions ~ * - ' k 1

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows W . J -

3.1. Notwithstandirig any provision of this Agreement 10 the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties ‘hereunder, .shall - become effective on
October 1, 2023 (“Effective Date"). . “nt

2. Para'graph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph '3.3 as follows: “u

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to.four {4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of -
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council. " X

1.3, Paragraph 12, AssignnienUDelegatiorﬁSubcontrécts. is amended by addin
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: ' 1 ¥

.12.3. Subconlractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the .
i Contractor and the. Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor .
s compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
e agreements-with all subcontractors, specifying the work to:be performed, .
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. ~Written
agreements shall spacify how coffettive action shall be managed. The
( .. Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's.performance on an ongoing
basis and také. corrective action -as necessary. The Contractor shall
_annually provide the State with a list of ‘all subcontractors provided for
under this. Agreement and notify the State of any- inadequate
subcontractor performance. g5 L

f "%
Kol ) i at
* 3.0
) . B
o . .
§
l b 5
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i K .. EXHIBITS

* .:.' : 4--‘ - - ’ '.}
. . . Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work -

.. 711, The Contractor must provide technical assistance “(TA), planning and
coordination support to the Department’s Contirnuum of Care (CoC) program in
the development implementation and evaluation of the current system to
‘ensure it meets United States Depariment of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) requurements and desired improvement of system performance ”
measures. e

1:2. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shau
mean Monday through Friday from 8: 00 AM to 4:30 PM, -excluding state and
federal holidays.

1.3. The Contractor must develop a CoC syslem, ensunng acuvutnes mclude bul are
-not limited to: ' ©

1.3.1. A55|snng with CoC system development through technical support,
& - including the- further - development of performance and annual
monitoring for Balance of State Continuum of Care (BoSCoC) pro;ects

and o

132 Assmhng wnh the deveIopmenl of monrtormg cmena for Coordmaled
" Entry (CE) and Homeless Management information Syslem (HMIS)
o CoC projects.

1.4.  The Contractor mus! develop a Coordinated Entry System (CES) ensuring
actwmes include, but are not limited to:

1.4:4. Providing assistance to CoC staff regarding CES |mplementatlon
* which may include feedback relative to:

1.4.1.1. ‘The New Hampshire CE Assessment Tool;
- 1.4.1.2, Evaluation criteria; .
' . 1.41.3. implementation; ' |
. 1.41.4. Interpreting evaluation results; and
T 1.445, Advising on éystem changes based on resuils.

1.4.2. Assisting with the development of the integration plan for Emergency ¥
¥ . Solutions Grant (ESG) Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) into BoSCoC CES.

1.4.3.. Providing other support and information on topics prioritized by
Depanment :staff within approved budget and’ TA provider experlise
and dvailability. )
1.5: Reporting Requiremeénts - mon

1.5.1. The Contractor must submit monthly reports’ that include detailed
" summiaries of work performed. .

16. Confidential Data’ ' ' ) [l:.;:k 3
§5:2024-DBH-2ETECKN-O1 8-20 Contractor inltials .

~ : . 9/5/2023
Techiiical Assistarice Collaboralve, Inc. Pageiof8 Date Y3/ .
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EXHIBIT B

i

1.6.1. The Contractor must mest all information sec’uﬁty and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's  Information Secunty Requ:rements Exhlblt as

T " referenced below.

1.6.2. -Thé Contraclor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering

" services lhrough the resulling contract sign an attestation agreeing to

access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with

federal ‘and state laws and regulations and the -Deparntment's

Information Securily Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must

2 ensure said individuals have: a justifiable business need to.access

- confidential data.. The Contractor must provide attestalions upon
Department request. '

1.7. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.7.4. f Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into " this
Agreement, are authorized by the Depariment's Information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfilment
of this Agreement, each End User must: '

A:7.4.4. Sign ‘and- abide by apphcable Department and New

: Hampshire Department of Information - Technology (NH

DolT) use ‘agreements, policies, standards, procedures and
gundelmes and complete applicable trainings as required;

g 1.7.42. Use the infofmation that they have permission to access

2, " sotely for conducting official Department business and

o _ agree that all other use or access is striclly forbidden:

including, but not limited, to personal or other private and

“ non-Department use, and that at no time must they access

or attempt to access informalion without having the express
autharity of the Depaftment to do so; fw

i7.13. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent:with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
L agreement relating to system entry/access;

a 1.7.1/4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse
engineer, rent.or sell Software licensed, developed, or being -
evaluated by the Department and at all timgs must use
utmost care-'to protect: and keep such software strictly
confidential in accordance with the, license or any other

B agreement executed by the Department;

L

1.7.1.5: Onlyuseequupment software, or subscription{s) authorized
by the Department's Information Secunty Office or
desngnee 1t

= ~03
o ! g H - (,'-‘M
§5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01 B-20 Contractor lnwals

- Technica) Agéi}.lance Collaboragive.'ff\c.. Page20i8 ... 9/5/ 2023 y
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S T EXHIBIT B
1.7.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department
equipment -unless -authorized by - the Departments
. Informatnon Security Office or designee; 5
) 1.7.4.7. Agree that email ‘and other electronic commumcatton .J_
messages created, sent,-and received on a Oepartment-
_ -issued email system are the property of the Department of
" New Hampshure and to be used for business purposes only.
_ Email is defined as “internal email systems or "“Depanment-
i funded email systems.” : '
- 1.7.1.8. Agree that use of email must fol!ow Department and NH
3, _ DolT pohcues standards, and/or guidelines; and .-
{ 1.7.1.8.  Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:,
. . 1.7.19.1' To only use a Department emall address
2 ' assigned (o them . with " a @
. 5 ? _ affiliate. DHHS.NH.Gov". ,
; 1.7.1.9.2. Inglude in the signature lines information .’
; ) ‘identifying the End User as a non-Department
L 1 workforce member; and
1.7.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality ‘notice is
" - embedded underneath the signature ling:
' ' CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: “This message
may contain information that is privileged and
y £ confidential and is intended only for the use of
; the individual(s) to whom it is addressed. If you
R receive this message in error, please notify.the
N = w sender'immediately and delete’ this eléctronic .
: . o message and any attachments from your
* system. Thank you fof your cooperation.’
1.7.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email,
access Qr potential access 1o Confidential Data, and/or a -
% workspace in a Department burldmg}facnhty. must:
T i - 1.7.1.10.1. Complete the Department’ s Annual Informatuon
_ Security ' & ‘Compliance Awareness Training =
prior to accessnng viewing, handling, hearing, or
transmitting Department Data or Confidential
Data. )
¥ " 1.7.1.10.2. Sign the Departriient's Busines§ Use -and-.
b ) Confidentiality. Agreement and Asset Use
‘Agreeiment, and the NH DolT Department wide
g Computer Use Agreement upon execution of
the Agreement and annually théreafter. .
l‘ji. 0 T 'rf z ' ’ EM
* $8-2024-08H-23-TECHN-01 6-2.0. Contractdr lnmals [ <o
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EXHIBIT B

.

1.7.1.11.

$1.7.4.12.

1.7.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedurés and
Information Security webpages.”

Contractor agrees, if any End User is found 1o bé in violation
of any of the above terms and conditions, sald End User
may face removal from the Agreement, and/or criminal
and/or civil prosecution, if the acl constitutes a violation of

law.

Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimUrﬁ of

" three business days’ prior to any upcoming transfers of

terminations of End -Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges. If

End Users who possess Department credentials and/or.

badges or who have system privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees to

notify the Depariment’s (nformation Security Office or

. " designee’immediately.” -
1.7.2. Woikspace Requirement

17.2.1.

) . .
If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to

determine requirements for providing necessary workspace .

and State equipment for its End Users.

4.8. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.8.1. General Reguirements

1.8.1.1.

158.':1:2- '

i

$5-2024-DBH-23-TECHN-01

« - .. Technical Assislance Collaboralive, Inc. Page 40{8 . .. Date

If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to
effecluate a smooth secure transition. of the Services from

the Contractor to the Department .and, if applicable, the

Contractor engaged by .the Department to’ assume the

Services. previously performed by the Contractor for this-

section the new Contractor must be known as “Recipient”).

Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the.contract of unless.

otherwise specified by the Depariment, the.Contractor must
begin working with the Depariment and if applicable, the

new Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The .

Department must provide -the DTP template to the
Contractor. . ; :

The Confractof must use féasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, in connection ‘with the transition from the
performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users fo ‘the performance of such Services. This may

include assislance with the secure transfer. of records

(electronic and hard copy), transition of historigatpgata

. B20 Conlraclor Initlals =X :
9/5/2023
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EXHIBIT B

y . 1843,

e " [

.

2 " 1815

1.8.1.6.

(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service

_.from the hardware, software, network and

telecommuriications  equipment  and - iAternet-related

" information technology infrastructure (“(nternal IT Systems')

of Contractor to the Interna! IT Systems of the Recipient and,
cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient |n connectlon with the
Transition Services. - ¥ "

i3 A

If a system, database, hardware software, and/or software
licenses (Toois) was purchased or created io manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract
said Tools will be inventoried and returned to .the
Department,” along with the inventory - document once
transition of Department Data is complete.

" The.internal pianning of the Transition Services by the

‘Contractor and its End Users-must be provided to the
Department and. if applicable the Recipient in 'a timely -

manner. Any such Transition Services must be deemed to
be Services for purposes ‘of this Agreement.

Should the 'data Transition extend beyond the end of the

Agreement, the Contractor ‘agrees that the Information - -

Security Requirements, and if applicable, the Department’s

‘Business Associate -Agréement terms and’ condmons

remain in. eéffect until the Data Transition is accepted as

complete by the Department.

in the -event where the <Conlractor has comlngled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said -
.data is not feasible, the Department and Contractor will

jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
reténtion requirements prior to destruction, referto the termss
and conditions of the Department's DHHS fnformatuon
‘Security Requuremems EKhlbll ]

wr

1.8.2. Completlon of Transition Services

S 1.8.2.4,

[

* $5:2024.D8H-23- TECHN-01

-. . Technical Assistance Collaborative, inc.  _,.  Page 50{8, ; . Date

Each sefvice or Transmon phase must be” deemed

-compléted {and the Transition process finalized) at the end.

of 15 business days after the product, resulting from the
Serwce is delivered to the Department and/or the Recipient

in accordance’ with ‘the mutually agreed upon Transition

plan, unless wnhm said 15 business day term the Contractor
notifies the- Depa rfment of an issue requiring additionaltime

to complete said product.

o

o

- ‘ o3 R
B-2.0 " Cohtraclor Initials L
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“T . EXHIBITB

'1.82.2. Once all parties agree the dala has been migreted the
o Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the

Ero
"::'d‘-‘.
.
)

Security Requirements Exhibit,

1.8.3. Dusagreement over Transition Services Results 5
' In the event the Department is not satisfied with the resuilts
of the Transition Service, the Depantment must not:fy the
Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the lack of
satisfaction within 15 business days of the final product or at

e . 1 any time during the -data Transition process. The Parties

&3 must discuss the actions to be taken to resolve the.

disagreement or issue. If. an.agreement is not reached, at
_ . any time the Department must be entitled 1o initiate actions
. in accordance with the Agreement. 2

. 2. Exhibits Incorporated , ' ' ;

2.1.. The Contractor must comply wnh all Exhibit D Federal Requlrements which
are attached hereto and incorporated by referénce herein.

2:2. The Conlractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement |n'

accordance_ with the terms of Exhibit €, OHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The -Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

terms and conditions of the Department's Information

Tuiy

i -comphance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information (Privacy. Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
- Insurance Portability and Accountability Act-(HIPAA} of .1996, and-in

2 _-accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Assoc:ate Agreement which
"« hasbeen executed by the parties. :
3. Additional Terms T .
W - 3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes o

= 3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal

legislation or court orders :may have an impact on the Services

; described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities

S E— - ..and expendtture requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

i 3.2.7 ‘Federal Civil Rights Laws Cor’npliani:e:' Ctjl,tu_r'al_ly-and Linguistically
' Appropriate Programs and $ervices

3.2.1. * The Contractor miust.submit, within ten (10} days of the conitract
- effective dale, ‘a detailed description of the communication access
&% and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
" limited English profi c1ency individuals who are deaf or have heanng

. ]S
. : ]-:M
e 5 v P ket

$5-2026.0BH-23-TECHN-01 = 82,0 .7 Conleagtor tnials =

¥ i "Technical Assislance Collaborative, Inc. . . Page-6.0l8 . . Dale

. ' ‘ 9/5/2023
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%

g, 3.3 Credits and Copynghl Ownership. . | v
I-_;I"} b 3.31 ::'

3.3.3.

4 3,3.4.

'4,- Retords

41. The Conlractor must keep records that mclude but are not limited to:
441

332,

“loss’ individuals who are blind or have low vision; and mdrvuduals who
have speech challenges.

.

Al documenits, .notices, press releases research reporis and other’
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract must include the following statement, "The
‘preparation of this (réport, document etc.) was financed under a

_Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and

Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or -
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.”

All materials produced or purchased under the contract must have |
prior approval from the Department before pninting, productron

. distribution or use.

The Department must retain copynght ownership for any and all
original materials produced including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures;
3332, Resource directories; = % | =
3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;
'3.33:4. Posters; and

" 3.335. Reports. A E

The Confractor.must not reproduce any matenals produced under the
contract,wrthoul prior written: approval from lhe Depariment.

] t
i

Books records, documents and other electronic or physrcal data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by

"~ thé Contractor in the performance 6f the Contract, and all income

received or collected by the Contractor

‘Al records must be maintained in accordance with accounhng
procedures and praclices, which sufficiently and property reflect ail
such costs and- expenses, and which are acceptable tothe
Départment, and to include, without limitation, ‘all.ledgers, books,
records, and orugmal evidence of costs-such as purchase requisitions,
and orders, vouchers reqursmons for materials, ifiventorias,
valuations of in-kindi contributions, labor time cards, payrolis, and -
other records requested or required by the Depariment.

4.2 During the term of this ‘Contract and the period for relention hereufrfe?;

$5-2024-DBH23-TECHN.01 C 820 4 Contractor Inflsls s s

2 B . ' 9/5/2023
Technical Assislance Collaboralive, In¢. _ _._/5/2

f"ag'e‘roie - ._ .. . Date

.

‘a3
-1
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. i : EXHBITB | .

. Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and

= = any of their designated-representatives must have access to ali reports and

: records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examnnahon
'excerpts and transcripts. :

4.3. 'If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must dlsallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department

retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as

are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor )

14

'y

o

ey 4 i

‘ . 3 DS 3
i ’ ‘o 820 = % Contractor initials * L

9/5/2023

$5-2024-08H-23-TECHN-01

chhntcalAsslslancgCoflahbomﬁ:va,_lq_g. .. PageBol 8 i ¢+ - - Dale
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RN P EXHIBIT C

)
Payment Terms -

- 1. .This. Agreement;s funded by:

NH0133L1T002100.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Deparlment has identified:
¥ S 2.1. The Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200. 331
2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in-accordance with'2 CFR §200.332.
3. Payment shall be for services provided in the fulﬁllhien,t of this Agreement, as

£ specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with SUpponihg documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth’(15th) working day of the month following
‘the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure

each mvon';e

4.1. includes the Conlractors Vendor Number issued upon reg:sterlng with
New Hampshsre Department of Admiinistrative Services.

4.2, ls submitted in a form that is provnded by or otherwise acceptabie to the

bk

e Department ‘ o

4.3. ldenufles -and requests payment for allowable -costs incurred in the

: previous month.
i

! -;-.: : * . 4.4. Includes supponi’ng""documeniatio'n of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expénditures, as applicable.

4.5. s completed, dated and returned to the Department with the suppomng
& documientation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

46. 1Is assfg'ned an electronic signature, -includes supporting documentation,

. 11.  100% Federal funds, as awarded on-March 28, 2023, by the U S
Department of Housing and Urban Development Continuum of Care
Program, ALN ~#14, 267,  FAIN#s NH0156L1T002200

NH DHHS
z . Bureau of Homeless Services
i * 129 Pleasani Street
N Concord, NH 03301

5. The Departimient shall make payments to the Contractor within forly-five (45)
days of receipt of each invoice and suppomng documentatlon for. authorized

L

expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted mvo:ce

6. ‘The final invoice and supportmg documemalron for aulhonzed expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract

e " ‘e -~ . = 22 ]
KN - 3 o -1 Lo N 7o . [
1 $5-2024-08H-23-TECHN-01 A c-2.0 ) Cantraclor Inttials, '

Tochnics) Assistancs Caltaborative, Inc. Pagetal2
-

_.and is emaited to hou5|ngsupportsmvmces@dhhs nh. qov or malled to:

Ly

#

1
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o " EXHIB'T C E '

completlon date specified in Form P-37, General Prowsmns Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwnthstandmg Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes

g limited to adjusting * amounts within- the price limitation and ‘adjusting

' encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the

' Budget Office: may be made by written agreemerit of both paries, without

o obtaining approval of the Governor and Exscutive Council, if heeded and
Justified.

8. .Audits

8.1 The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs aci@dhhs.nh.gov
if any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

3

federal funds received as-a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

- 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, 1ll-b, pertaining t0 charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

.8.1.3. 'Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulattons to
submit an annual financial audnt

8.2. IfCondition A exusts the Contractor shall submit an.annual Smgle Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Pan 200, Subpart F of the. Uniform

[

Adminisirative Requirements, Cosf Principles, and Audlt Requirements

£ L for Federal awards.
¥ 8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy 6f any Single Audit findings
. : and any associaled corrective action plans. The Contractor
o P shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of

mplementatuon of the corrective action plan.

~

83. .. If Condmon B or Condilion C-exists, the Contractor shall submit an
3 annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contraclor's fiscai year.

8.4. In addition to :and not in any way in limitalion of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
.Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall teturn to the Department all payments made under the
Agreernaiit to which exceplion has been taken, or WhICh have been

disallowed because of such an exception.
+1]
“Coniractor Inlllals E;:

55-2024-08H-23- TECHN-01 c-2.0 )
o 9/5/2023

Technica) Assistance Collsborative. inc. Page 2ol 2
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\ SECTION A; CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contrattor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions .
©  of Sections 5151-§160 Jf the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41~ ©
U.S.C. 701 el seq.}. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified (n Sections$

1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

e
e

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS -

i

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS '

This cqniﬁbétion is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Freé -
Workpiace Act of 1888 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.5.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1689 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Regisler (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by Inference, sub- contractors), prior to
¢ award, thal they will maintain a'drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides Lhat -
. a contractor (and by inference, sub-contraclors).that is a State may elect to make one certification'to the
& Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The cerificate set out below is 8 material representation of fact upon
" which reliance is placed when ihe agency awards the Agreement. False certification or viclation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspensian or termination of Agreements, or,
governmeént wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Comimissioner 5 .
= : NH Department of Health and Rimari Services i -
iy 129 Pleasant Slreet ;
Concord, NH 03301-6505 e '
1. Thé Céntractor ceitifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: i
o 1.1.'Publishing a slatement notitying'employees thal the unlawiu! manufacture, distribution,
; - dispensing, possession.or use of a controlled subslance is prohibited in the Contractor's -
‘workplace-and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violatiofi of such -
piohibition; ¥k _h g :
1.2.Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employe€s about -
" 1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace; -° ' #
. 1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, o
1.2:33.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penaliies that may be imposed upgn employees for drug abuse violations cccurring .
in the workplace; : - )
) 1.3.Making it & requirement Ihat each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
o ‘Agreemeni be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4, Notilying the employee in the statement required by paragraph {a)'that, as a condition of
# employment under the Agreement, the employee will ) &
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statemenl; and ' .
1.4,2. Notify the employer in wriling of his o her conviction for a violation of & ¢riming! drug
) L ~ slalyte oceurring in the workptace no later than five calendar days atter such conviction;
. % 1.5 Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving nolice undér .
c * subparagraph 1.4.2 from an empioyee or otherwiseé receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employées must provide nolice, including position titlé, to every contract

B

- 1 ofiicer on whose'contract activity the convicled employee was working, unless'lhe F.F'gefb_!.
I ) T~ .,:m : ox e ; -:.\:--'" W
vi6/23 4 . Exhibit O Contraclor's Initials o 2, ¢
‘ _ I Federal Requirements: Date T o 4
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Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

- agency has designated a cential point for the receipt of such notices. Nolice shall include the

identification number(s) of each affected Agreement; : B
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving nolice under

_ subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is 50 convicted
" 161,

1.6.2.

Taking appropriate personnel aclion against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Acl of 1973, as
amended or 3

Requmng such employee to participate satisfactorily in 2 drug abuse assislance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by-a Federa), State, or tocal health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; .

1.7. Making 2 good falth effort o continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, 8nd 1.6. i, ;

v:-‘

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided belOw the site(s) for the performance ol work done

in connection with the specific Agreement.. . .

Place of. Perlormance (street address/’ city, county slate zlp code) {list each location)

n--'

.Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. ‘=

[y

-
Y

w1

E1Y

B

# B .

Y LOY] T

v16/23

hibit O . Contraclor’s initials o
Exhibi Cotacors alsg,s,”” |
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 1o comply with the provisions

% . of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying.
and 31 U.S.C. 1352; and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representalive, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Prowsnons execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS' 5-
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS :
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered).
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Tille iV-0
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Tille XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

‘-

The undersigned centifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

t. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
A any person for influéncing or attemptmg lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
‘Congress in conneclion with the awarding of any Federal conlract, conlinuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal conlract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-conlractor). .

.- . 2. Iiafy funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or, will be paid to any person for
influencing of, attempling to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 8 Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 2 Member of Congress in connection with
‘this Federal contract, loan, or cooperalive agreement {and by specific mention sub- conlraclor) the
undersigned shall completg and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Repart Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see hups:llomb.reporuicrrzm009-0348-022!(10:_:[203,8,8401 .

3. The undersigned shall requlre that the’ language of this certification be inciuded in the award
document for sub-awards atall tiers (including subcontracts, and conlracts under grants, loans, and
& cooperative agraemenls) and that all sub-recipients shall cerlify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is & material representauo!l of {act upon which reliance was placed when this
transacuon was mada or entered into. Submiission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
enlenng into this transaclion wnposed by Section 1352, Tille 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file, _

- the required cemlicahon shall be subjectto a civil penalty of fiot less than 510 000 and not more than, -
$100,000 for each such fa:lure i K
.r = &
D ¥
J
J vl 6/23 _ ExhibitD ‘Contraclor's Inilials :“—,! -
3 : Federai Requirements Date
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" - Yhe Coniractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the Prasident, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Debarment,

ey -

New‘Har;)pshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit D — Federal Requirements '

s
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SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REG.AjRDING bEB_ARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS : :

"
I35 ¥

Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and turiher agrees to have the Conlraclor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: i .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION - ' )
1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospeclive primary participant is providing the i
certification set out below. i

2. The inability of a person to provide the centification required below will not necessarily result in

denial of participation in this tovered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall

submit an explanation of why it caniol provide the certification. The certificalion or explanation will

be consldered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, fallure of thé prospeclive primary

participant to furnish a centification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation

in this transaction. . ®

oy s
LA &

3. The cerification in this clause is 8 malterial representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined lo enter into this iransaclion. If il is later determined thal the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition o other remedies

available to the Federal. Government; DHHS may lerminate this transaction for cause or defaull. .
1y .

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediale written notice to the DH HS agency to

whom this Agreemen! is submilted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when Submitled. or has become erraneous by reason of changed

e

circumstances. . .

5. The terms "covered fransaction,” “debared,” *suspended,” *ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaclion,” *principal,” *proposal,” and
*voluntarily excluded,” as.used in this clause, have the meanings set oul in the Definitions and
Coverage seclions of the rules implementing Executive Order 12548: 45 CFR Pant 76. See

https:l!www,govinfo.gowappldelallleFR-ZOOd_-title45—.vol1le—'.R-2_004-|i1le45-vol1-paﬂ?ﬁlcontext. :

6. The p_rospeélive'prin-!ary pariiéipant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed

&

covered transaclion be entered into, it shatl not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7, The prospective primary participant further agrees by sﬁbmit,ling,ihis proposal that it will include the
clayse lilied *Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion :

Lower Tier Covered Transaclions,” provided by DHHS, withoul madification, In all lower tier'covered

‘transactions and in.all solicitations for fower tier covered transactions.

i - Wi

from'the covered transaction, unless it knows thal the"certification is erroneous. A participanl may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each

- participant ay, bt is not required to, check Lhe Nonprocurement List {of excluded parti
https:/iww.eclr.govicurrentftitie-22/chapter-Vipan-513. :

viens ‘ © ExhibilD
Eederal Requirements Date

Page 4 of 10

Cantractor's Initials o oo

A pa_ﬂic:'ibani in a.covered {ransaclion may'rely upon @ certification of a prospective participant in a
lower lier covered transaction that it is no} debarred, suspended, ineligible, ‘or involuntarily excluded

r&)—m
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9. Nothing contained in the faregoing sha!l be construed Lo require establishmenl of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent

. parson in the ordinary course of business dealings. . 1

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph6 of these instructions, it a participantin a
) covered lransaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
-suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded trom participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may tefmmale this
transaclion for cause of defaull

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies lo the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and ils
principals:

11,1, Are not presently debarred, suspended proposed for debarment declared ineltguble or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency,

11,2, Have not within a three-year périod preceding this proposal (Agreement} been convicted of .
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or & triminal offense
in connection with oblaining, attempting 'lo obtain, or perfarming a public {Federal, State or
local) iransaction of & contracl under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrusl statutes or commission of embezzlemenl theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

) "11.3.  Ase not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmenial entity
{Federal, State or loca!) with commission of any of the offenses enumierated in paragraph
: ©+ (1){b) of this certification; and
11.4.  Have not within a three-year pefiod preoedmg this applucalnonfproposa! had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) termmated for cause or defaull,

ix

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify'lo any of the statements’ in this -
certification, such prospectwe panicipan! shall ‘Bitach an explanation to this proposal (contracl)
ko
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By ‘'signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement) the prospeclive lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that il and
its principals: i
13.1.  Are not presently | debarred suspended, proposed for. debarment, declared mehgtble or
“ voluntarily excluded from participalion in this transaction by any tederal departmenl or
agency.
2 13.2.  Where the prospect:ve lower tler panicipant is uriable to certify to any of the above such
prospec!we partlcapant shall attach an explanatuon to this proposal {(Agreement).

" 14. The prospeclive lower tier participant fufther agrees by submmmg this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this élaiise éntitled *Centification Regarding Debarment, _Suspension, Ineligibitity, and
oo - Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tiér Covered Trdnsaclions,” without modification in all lower lief covered
B Iransachons and in all “solicitations for loweér tier covered transactions. !

i
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Fedéral, Requirements,

SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TG

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED.
ORGANIZATIONS WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS CLEAN AIR AND GLEAN WATER
ACT s; : N a

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of tl;e General Provisions agrees by signature of the

Contraclor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 arid 1.12 of the Generai Provisions, t0.execute

the following certification:

Conlractor wlil comply, and will require any subconlractors to comply with any applrcable federal
-rlondlscnrmnahon requirements, which may include:

1. The Omnibu_s Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.5.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal fundmg under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
praclices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, cotor, religion, nationat

:‘-" origin, and sex. The Act requires certain rec;p:enis to produce an Equal Employment Opponunily

" Plan; " - _ : i

2. The Juvenilé Justice Detinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Seclion 5672(b)) which adopts
" by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under.
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, nationa! origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employmenl Qpportunity Plan reqmremenls

3. -The Civit Rrghls Acl of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Seclion 2000d, which prohubnls recipients of federal financial

assistance from discriminating on the basns of race, color, or national origin in any program or
aclivity); 3

o

4. The Rehabititation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal.

‘financial assistance from duscnrntnatmg on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delwery of services or benefils, in any program or activity;

5: Thé Americans with Disabllities Act of 1990 (42 U.S. .C. Sections 12131- -34), which prohibits
discnmmaluon and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in emptoyment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilmes and ransportation;

6. The Education. Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which. prohibils
duscnmmatlon on the basis of sex in tederally assisted educalion programs; o

7. The Agé Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 8108-07) which prohnbnts disenimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities recewmg Federal financial assistance. It does not include
: emp!oyment discnmmalton

8. 28C.F, R. pt. 31.(U.S. Department of Justice Regulahons 0JJDP Grant Programs) 28C.F.Rpl.
42 (U’S. Department of Jusm:e ‘Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunuy
Policies and Procedures) Executive Order Na. 13279 (equal proteclion of the laws for faith-based
and communny organizations), Executive. Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and poncy makmg criteria for partnerships with'faith-based and neighborhood organlzahons

9. 28 C.F.R.pt 38 (V. S. Department of Justice Regulauons Equal Trealment for Faith-Based <
Organizahons) and Whislleblower protecuons 41U.8.C. §4712 and The National Delense '
+Authorization Act (NDAA} for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L.112- 239 enacted Janiary 2, 2033 the Pilol

TR

v16/23 = Exhibit,D Contractor's Initials —_;
Federal Requirements Date 97572023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sérvi_cés
i Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

a
s

Program for Enhancement of Cohtrag:t Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing aclivities in connection with federal grants
and contracts. ‘ ¥ LA I

10. Thé Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protecl human heatth and the
environment from emissions that poliute ambient, or ouldoor, air, i v

11. The Clean Water Act (33 U.SIC. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulé:ing

discharges of pollutants Ifito the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for surface

waters. :

The certificate set dut below is a material representation of fact-upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification of violation of the certification shall be grounds for” -
suspension of payments, suspension of termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment. i Ty .

P

. l- . \ 2
In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of

* discrimination alter a due process hearing on.the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex

against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of tha finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable conlracling agency or division within the Depaniment of Health and Human Sesvices,

.and to lhe Department of Health-and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signalure of the
Conlractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, 10 execute
the foltowing certification: iy

1. ‘By'signing and submitting this Agreemenl, the Conlraclor agrees to comply with the provisions ~

indicaled above. ' SR 4 ] 4 o

“

13

i
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L]

s SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGABDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Pan C - Environmental Tobacco ‘Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Actof
w 1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facilily owned or leasad
N or contracted for by an enmy and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under thé. age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal ¥
programs either direclly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does.not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facililies used for inpalient drug or alcdhol
lreatment. Failure lo comply with the provisions of the law may resutt in the imposition of a civil,
- monetary penaity of up to $1000 per day and/or lhe imposition of an administrative cornplaance order on
the respansible entity. e

L o

_The‘Contractor identifed in Section 1. 3 of the Generél Provisions agrees, by signature of the '
.Contractor's representative as identified in Seclion 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generat Provisions, (o execute
the following certification: I
. . ) )
1, By signing and submitting this Agreément, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to - :
.comply with all applucab|e provisions of Public Law 103-227, Panrt C, known as the Pro-Chitdren Act

of 1994, 4 s
5 ®w = b
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Exhiblt D - Federal Requlrements

SECTION F: CERTIFICATION 'REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTAB!LITY

- .AND AND TRANSPARENCY. ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federa! Funding Accountability and Transparency Act [FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on dala relaled lo executive compensalion and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
fnore. If the initia! award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the dale of
the award.

ooty
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Repon:ng Subaward and Executive Compensalion Information),
the Department of Heatth and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject lo the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

M

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. Pr‘ogrém source

”

6. Award litle descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location'of the entity .

8. Priﬁi:iple ‘place of performance

8. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

~1n
[l

10. Tota! compensation and namies of the top five executives if.
10.1.  More than 80% of anhual gross revenues are from the Federdl gavernmeént, and those
" revenues are greater than $25M annually and '
10.2. . -Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
Prime grant recipients must sibmit FFATA required data by the end of the month, pius 0
days, in which.the award or award amendment is made.

e

The Contraclors identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees (o comply wilh the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accounlability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and-Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Réporting Subawarg and Executive Compensation Informalion), and further
agrees to have the Coritractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of he General
Provisions e'xe(:ule the foltowing Certification:

The bélow named Contraclof agrees to provide needed information as outlined abave fo the NH
Department of Heallh and Human Services and to comply with all apphcable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

(s
o

Contractor's Initials =2
97‘&7'?02-3-—
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. Exhibit D - Federal Requirements .
B } o ' 2 ' : G t )
FORM A ) s S _ .

As the Grantee'identified in Sechon 1.3 of the General Provusmns | certify lhat the responses to the
below listed queshons are true and accurate.

’

. , .. EWIXX1GEPRBS
R 1. The UEI (SAM.gov]numberfor your enlity is; 1

¥
i) '

2. In your businéss or drganization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
= organization receive (1) B0 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subconlracls, koans, g?ants sub-grants. andlor cooperative agreements; and {2) $25.000,000 or
; mote in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcentracts, loans, grants, subgrants
& ‘andfor cooperative ngreernents? | '

, . X NO , - YES f | ' ) I
" If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here , 3
- If the answer to #2 @bove is YES, please answer the following: '-
& 3. -Does the public have access to information about the compensalion of the execulives in your
business of organization through pericdic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m{a) 780(d)} or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

Vit

e

. NO : YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
It the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the iollowmg

4: The names and compensation of the live most highly compensated officers In your business or
% organization are s follgws.

el Name: . Amounl:
Name: . v & .Munlz ]
W Name: 1 .. Amount: _ -
‘ Nam95,, " '_ { . Amaunt: . i
. Name: ds 1 * _ Amount: & .
* 1
g 2 : it | . i )
5 . . .,
) 2 ‘Conlraclor Name: i
) . . : — Owtudigaes wy: A gl
" 9/5/2023” ' buwin Martour ; _
% Date: ‘ . NameXevin Martone i
o! . N Eo Tile: Executive Director -

vi6rd - . Exhibil D < Contraclarsimluals
e . "% Federal Requirements . Date

el | ] .+ . Page10of10 ., - ! .
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‘ New Hampshire Deparlm_eht of t:le'alth and Human Services’
Exhibit E

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

" “The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

'Breac.h means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition. unauthorized access, or any simitar term referring to
situations where persons othér than authorizéd users and for an other than authorized
purpose - have access or potential access to personally identifiable irformation,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protecled Health information, Breach®
shall have the same meaning as the lerm "Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. B i

o

2. ‘*Computer Securily Incident” shall have the same meaning "Computer Securily
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department ¢ ol
Comimerce.

e

, 3 'Conﬁdenlial Information” or "Confidential Data® means all confidential information
2. ; disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical,. heallh, financial, public
, assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
- ;- 1. Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally ldentifiable Information.
= - I' =i
Confidential Information al,so includes any and all information owned or managed by
& the State of NH -created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) of accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which-collection, disclosure, protection, .and disposition is governed by state or
- federal law or regulation. This information iricludes, but is not limited to Protected
Health information (PH)), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financiat Information
"(PF), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Sociat Security Numibers (SSN), Paymenl Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential informalion.

4. “End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contraclor, contractors employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, elc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contracl

- R 5. "HIPAA" means thie Health Insurance Portability and Actountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

8. “Incident” means an act that potentially violales an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes atternpts (€éither faited or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
*Systemor its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
o a.system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmiware, or software tharacleristics withoul the owrier's knowledgeé, -inslruction, 'of
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
" . o3
* | . kM
) ' Contractor inliiels L_._.‘

V5. Lost update 10/09/18 L " - 9/5/2023
: ’ Page 10! 9 £ Osta
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Exhibit E _
DHHS Information Security RequiremeniS'

it

"
A &

10.
11.

12.

A

or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electromc

"fhail, all of which may have the potential 1o put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction. - A

“*Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is not

designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegale as a prolected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the

. State, to transmil) will be considered an open network and not adeguately secure for

the transmission of unencrypted Pl, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

~*Personal Information” (of *PI%) means information which can be used to distinguish

or trace-an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biomelric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying informalion which is I:nked

‘or linkable to a specific. Jndwudua1 such as date and place of bith, mother's maiden
. name, &ic.

-

*Privacy Rule® shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifi able Health )

Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPM by the Uniled

‘States Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services.

*Protected Health [nformation” (or “PHI%) has, the same meaning as provided in the
definition of *Protected Health Informalnon in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C. F R.§
160.103. . 3

3

*Security Rule” 'shall mean the Securlty Standards for the Protechon of Electronic
Protected Health Information al 4% C F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendmenls
thereto. B

. 1%
“Unsecured Prolected Health Information® means Protected Health information thal IS
not secured by -a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information

unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developéd -

of endorsed by a standards .developing organizalion that is accredated by lhe
American National’ Standards institute, i

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTR;ACTOR

A Busmess Use and Disclosuré of Confidential Information,

1

V5. Lasi updale 10003718

.The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmil Confi dentlal information
except as -reasonably necessary.as oullined under this Coniract. Further, Contractor,
'mcludmg but.not limited to all its directors, officers, .employees and agents, must nol
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner thal would constutute a violation
of the Privacy and. Security Rule.

s
W

i 4

+ Page 200 ) '-?_ Dalo
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2. The Contractor must not disctose any Confidential Informahon in response to a request

for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response 10 a subpoena elc.,
without firs! notlfying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunily to consent or ObjBCl to
the disclosure. ’

3. If OHHS notifies the Conlraclos that DHHS has ‘agreed to be bound by addilional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or securily sateguards of PHI
pursuant lo the Privacy and Secunly Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and musl not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional securily safeguards. '

4. The.Contractor agrees that DRHS Data or derivative there from dlsclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuanl to the terms of this. Contract.

5. The Coniractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes that are ot indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data-to the authorized representatives of

DHHS for the purpose of mSpectmg to conf rm compliance with the terms of this
Comract s =

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is lransmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Dala between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber- security and that said application’s encryphon
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. o

Computer Disks and Portable’ Storage Devices. End User may not use compuler disks

. or portable storagé devices, such as a thumb drive, a$ a method of transmm:ng DHHS
dala. -

Encrypted Email. End User may only employemail to transmit Confidential Data if email

is encrypted and being sent to and being receivéd by emall addresses of persons
-authorized to receive: such'information.

_ Encrypled Web Site. if End User is employing the Web to ransmit Confidential Datd, the
secure socke! layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts .
‘data transmitied via a Web site. .

- Fite Hoslting Services, also’known as File Sharmg SlleS End User may not use file hosting

services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transriit Confidential Dala via certified ground :j

mail within the oonltnenlal U.S. and when sent (o a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing poriable devices 1o transmit Confldentnal Data
sald devices must be encrypted and password- protected - )

- iy i

S g ' A

e o3 -
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.
- S —
i Lt

T 9/5/2023 .

"

AN

Page Yol § L3 Oats

L !



DocuSign EnveloPe ID EdSOQOF?-ADZZ-‘SCC A4EDC-TACRATI2AES)Y

* e

New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services

wow A e DHHS Information SecurutyRequnrements e

Exhiblt E . “ ' 2

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual pnvate network (VPN) when remotely
" transmitting via-an open wireless network. i

© 9. Remote User qunrnumcahon. If End User is employing remote communicalion to access
or transmit Confidentiat Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed an the End

User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure Filé Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
_Folider and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24- hour
auto~deletion cycle (i.e. Confi denlual Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

8. Open Wireless Networks. "End User may no! transmit Confidential Data via an open \

11. Wireless Devices. If End User |s transmilting Confidential Data via wireless.devices, all

data.must be encrypled lo prevent inappropriate discloswe of. informption.

-,
e

ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

Coniract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherynse required by law or permitied under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:’ . .

; T Dib ] s

A. Retention. N

3T

4 1. The Contractor agrees il will not store, lransfer or process data.collected in
) conneclion. with_ the services renderéd under this Cbntraci outside of the United
o ‘States. This physical location. requnrement shall also apply in the lmplementatlon of
= " cloud compuling, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
= data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Conlractor digrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place

T

g3 to .detect poiential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or .

‘Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees lo prdvide securily awareness' and education for its End
o Users in support of protectlng Department confidential mlormatuon

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all eiectronic and hard c0p|es of Confidential Data
|n ‘a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

s R 5. The Contraétor agréees Confidential Dala stored in a Cloud must be in ‘a
FedRAMPIHITECH ‘compliant soiution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regardmg the privacy and secunty All servers and devices must have
_carrently- supported .and hardened operaling systems, the latest anti-virai,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment,.as"
a-whole, musi have aggressive infrusion-detection and firewall protection.

) os
' f [:N
.Conlenctor Indt[als - 3

. '
" V5. Lasl updale 10/09/18 o o 3 9/5/2023
Pa_ge 4ol 6 Data . s e
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The Conlractor wnll only retain the data and any denvat:ve of the data for the duration of this

b
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V5.-Last updale 10/09/18 i ' - 9f5/2023

6. The 'Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cboperatnon with the State's

B. Disposition

s
-

R

Chief Information Officer in the detectlon of any security, vuinerability of the hosting
infrastructure. :

.*'v.

1) If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its sub-

%

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

contractor systems), the Contracior will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or conlract lermmauon and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disasler recovery

__operations.. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
‘Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program-in

accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanilization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, Naticnal Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Conlractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written cedification to the Department upon request.
The-written certification will include all detaiis necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where appl:cable regulatory and
pro!ess:ona| standards for retention requirements will be jointly avaIuated by the
State and Contractor prior fo destruction.

¥

‘Unless otherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this Contracl,

Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Conlractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known &$ secure data wiping. w

™ i

A. Contraclor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contradl, and any
derivative data of files, as follows: _ _ ! )

"L

r

The Contractorwill maintain proper security controls to protect Depariment confidential
information collected processed, managed, and/or stored in the delwery of contracted
services. .

‘The Contractor will maintain policies'and procedures 1o protect Departmient confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from- creation,
transformation, ‘use, storage and Secure destructlon) regardless of the media used to
storé the dala (i.€., tape, disk, paper, etc.)

i : 03
= f ! l LM
Contractor Initials Noee

Page S i 9 P Date
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-
e +*

The Contractor will maintain appropriate aulhentication and access controls to

" contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information

where applicable.

. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capablltttes are in place fo detect

potential security events that can impact Slate of NH -systems and/or Department
conﬂdentlal infarmation for contractor provided systems

oY The Contractor will provide reguiar security awareness and education for its End Users

in-support of protectung Department conf denttal information.

r

It the Contractor will be sub—contractmg any core functions of the engagement.

: supportlng theé services for -Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

program of an internal process or processes that defines spec:ﬁc security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requ:rements that at 3 minimum match’ those for .
the Contractor including breach notifi catlon requirements.

L)

. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all appllcable

State of New Hampshtre and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer.use agreements as part of oblaining
and maintaining access to any Department $ystem(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authonzed .

T

If the Depariment determines the_ Contraclor is a Busmess Associale pursuant to 45

CFR 760.103, the Contraclor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. _

. The Contractor will work wilh the Depariment at its request to comptete a System

Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor 1o monitor for ‘any changes in.risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that: -may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. -The survey will be completed
annually, or an,alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contracior, or'the Cepartment may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement betwaen the Depadmenl and the Contractor changes

10 The Contractor will hot store, knowingly or unknow:ngly, any State of New Hampshire

or Department data offshore or ouilside the boundaries of the United States unless prior-
express wrilten consent is dblained from the Information Securtty Office Ieadershtp
friember within the Deparment. -

11. Data Security:Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make

_ efforts to investigate the causes of-the breach, promptly také measures to prevent

N . . TR 0
H --': & - ' l HUL
e = i . Contractor Inilials

+
* »,
™

. V5. Lésl updsle 1003118 £ . " , 9/5/2023
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V5. Last Updato 10005118 . = war 9572023

P

12.

~

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover fram the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach including but not limited to: credit'monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with websne and telephone call cenler semces necessary due to the
breach . )

Contractor must comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regardmg the
pnvacy and securily of Confidential Information.-and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a ievel and scope that is not iess than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not fimited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parls 160 and 164) that

. govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as apphcable.

13.

under State law. N

Contractor agrees to ‘establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentialily of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards musl provide a level and scope of

Security that is not léss than the level and scope of security requirements established

by the Siate of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer.to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.him for the
Department of Information. Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and

“procurement information relating to vendors.:

14,

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach nofificalion and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Securily
Officer of any securily breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section

_ V1. This includes a confideritial infornidtion breach, computer security incident, or

15.

16.

" suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire sysiems that

connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access 10 the Confi denhal Dala obtained under this Conlract
to only thosé authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
dutnes in connection with purposes, identified in this Contract.

The’Contractor mus! ensure that all End Users

. a. comply with sGch sateguards as réferenced in Secllon IV A. above, implemented

to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract.
from loss, theft or inadverient dnsclosure

b. safeguard this information at all times.

¢. ensuie lhal Iaplops and other electronic devuceslmedla containing PHI, P, or -

PFI are encrypled and password-prolecled

-

63
Contractor Inltials L

kA H
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ar

d. sénd emails containing Corifidential Information only if encrypted and belng sent
" lo and being received by email addresses of persons authonzed to receive such
information. .

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by aw.

f. Confidential Information received under this Conlract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologlcally secure from access by unauthorized persons during.duly hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door tocks, card keys, biomeltric identifiers, etc.).

g.”.only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any

derivative files contalmng personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
_ such data must be encrypled at all times when in trans:t at rest, or when stared
- 2 on ponable media as required in sectlon IV above. - . ..

i . h. inall other instances Confidential Data rnust be maintained, used-and disclosed
usung appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

! understand that their User credentuats (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS

? R reserves the nght to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
tncludmg the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is dasposed
of ih accordance with this Contract.

~

3}

V.  LOSS REPORTING
- The Contractor must notify the State s 'Privacy Officer and Securaty Officer of any Security
Incidents and-Breaches immediately, at the email add_r_esses provided in Section Vi

'

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
_ accordance wilh the agency's documented. Incident Handling and Breach Nolification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§-431.300 : 306. In addilion to, and
notwnthstandtng Contractor's compliance with all apphcable obligations and procedufes
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contraclor will:

[ Lo

1. ‘dentify Incidénls, i PO
e 2. 'Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
i ¥ 3. Repor suspected or confirméd Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;.
r R . 0 p T i -1‘. o] a1 ]
* o g g 3 | {:N.
. N . . e . o Conuactor tnttlals
V5. Lastupdeto 1009118 5 " ? " 9/5/2023

Pege 8ol . " Date



DocuSign Envelope |D: E45040F7 A02245CC~A1E0-7ACQA732AE53 .
DocuSign Envdope {D: OAE 1070D-9D0C-4 344-829C-30F JASMBDBLEF -

)

% New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servnces
Exhibit E
DHHS Information Security Requirements )
1- ] . o
: 4. Identify and convene a core response group to deferm'rne the risk ievel of'lnr:idenls and
o defermine risk-based responses to Incidents; and =
% 5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify apprapriate Breach
notification methods:- liming, source, and .contents from among dlfferenl options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measwes
E; Inc:dents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and- reported as apphcable ¥
" in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. ;
i
VI. PERSONS TO CONTAC-T .
 A. DHHS Privacy Officer. . - . i
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.ah.gov B T ‘
DHHS Security Officer: -
DRHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs:nh.gov
. .‘:'l ’
" - i st 3 ; . 2
q@oo
% o w o . L
- <] 2
p ’ B :
]
o ; 2
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W 3 : - :

The Contractor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions of the ‘Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement’), and any of its agents who receive use or have access lo protected health

 information (PHI),-as defined herein, shall be referred to as the *Business Associate.” The State

of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, *Department” shall be referred

to as the *Covered Entity,” The Conlractor.and the Department are collectively rele__rred to as ‘the

parties.” ok

The parties a"gree, to comply with the Heallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Acl, Public
Lew 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Securily of Jndividually I|dentifiable ‘Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of tHe HITECH Act, Title XU,

" Sublitle D, Parts 182 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,

el sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of

the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2,(42 CFR Par
2, (Pan 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time. '
X . i {

(1) . Definitions. ' ' ¢ !a:

" 8. ‘The following terms shall have the same .mea_‘r_\ing as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH Acl,

and Part 2, as they may be amended from time (o time:

*Breach,” “Designated Record Set,” *Data Aggregalion,” Designated Record Sel,”

*Health Care Operations,” "HITECH Acl.’ *Individual” “Privacy Rule,” “Required by
law,”*Securily Rule." and “Secretary.” T

b. Business Associale Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement that

. includes privacy and confidentialily requiremerits of the Business Associate working with

PHI and-as applicable, Pari- 2 record(s) on behaif of the Covered Entity under the
“Agreement. E ' .- '

c. “Construclively Identifiable,” means there is .a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be ‘used, alone or-in combination with-other reasonably available
information, by .an anticipated recipient to idenlify an individual who is a subject of the
information. o b ,

d. “Prolected Health Informalion” (‘PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA, means
protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to the. information
“crealed, received, or used by Business Associate from or on, behalf of Covered Entily, and

" “includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below. . s y =
re. “Part 2 record’ means any patient "Record,” relating to a “Patient,” and “Patient Identifying

Information,” as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11. 5

4. "Unsecured Protected Heallh Information” means protected health information that is not

*,
o

secured by a technology .standard that renders protecled beallh information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
-a standards developing organization thal is accredited by the American National Standards

Inslitule. i
2 Busi ' g ion,.
a. Business Associate shall not use, di_scj:l'o'sé,' mairitain, store, or transmit Protected. Health
Information (PHI) excepl as reasonably necessary lo provide the services outlingd ijgder

ifr i et

the Agreement. ‘Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all its:C i_'[, rs,
'\_ A . Exhioil F Conl;actotlniiials' o 5
iy # % Heslth Insirance Portablity At 9/5/2023
N Business Asdociate Agreemen! Daie.

Pagolol5
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" ofﬁcers employees,'and agents shall protect any PHI as required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part
2, and not use, disdose, maintain, store, of transmn PHI in any manner that would constitute a
violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable: .

. For the proper management and adminisiration of the Business Associate;

Il. - As required by law, ag:cbrding to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. t;elow;
Il According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard; i

iv. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Enmy. and
V. Data-that Is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may nol be used for any purpo‘se outside the performance of the Agreement,
c. To the extent Business Associate is permlned under the BAA or the Agreement to disclose
- PHI to any third parly or subcontractor prior to' making any disclosure, the Business
o Associate must oblain, a business associate agreement - with the third par‘ly or

.subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and ensures that all requirements and restrictions
placed on the Business Associate as part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included
in those busmess associate agreements with the third parly or subcontractor.

- d. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in respOnse 1o a request or demand for
disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it is required by faw,
withoul first nictifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can determine how to best protect
the PHL. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure, the Business Associate agrees to réfrain
from disclosing the PHI and shall cooperate with the Covered Enlity in any effort the
Covered Entity undertakes to contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal

: process. If applicable relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associale shall res:st any
efforts to access part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) :II. |. .IE R Lt [E H E 3 !

a. Business . Associate shall |mplemenl appropriate: saleguards to prevent unauthorized use
or disclosure of .all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule and Secunty Rute wilh
regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b: “The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer al
the following email ‘address, DHHSPrivatyOfficer@dhhs,nh.gov  after the Business
Associate has determined that any use .or ‘disclosure not provided for by its contract,
including any khown or suspected pfivacy or security incident or breach ‘has occurred
polentially expasing or compromising the PHI. This includes inadvertent or accidénta)

uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected health information.

¢: - In the event .of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
i ‘Business Associdte Agreement all applicable state and federal laws"and regulahons and

J any additiorial requurements of the Agreemeni. i
. d The Business-Associate shail perform a risk assessmént, based on the information

available at the time it becomes aware of- -any known or suspected privacy or security
breach as described above and communicats the risk assessment to the Covered Entity.
% © The risk assessment shall mclude but no!l be limited to:

|, The nature and extent of the protecled healt_h information involved, inclu the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

Exhibl'F ] Co[\lmclét tnitints P )

Heallh Insurance Portabltity Act o 9/5/2023

Business Associato Agreement v Date____ —
Poge 2015 ’

-
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av
LR

R L The unauihonzed person’ who accessed, used, disclosed, or reeived the
protected health mlormahon

Il. Whether the protected-health mformauon was actually’ acqwred or viewed; and

IV.\How .ihe risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
has been mitigated. &

e The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessmenl repoﬂ at the conclusnon of its

. incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in 2 written report ta the Covered

Entity as soon as practicable after the condus:on of the Business Associate's
mvesllgatlon -

f. - Business Associate shall make availabte all of its intemnal pOIICIes and procedures, books

.nd records relating o the use- and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received

: by the Business Associale on behalf of Covered Entily to the US Secretary of Health and

- Human Services for purposes of determlmng the Business-Associate's and the Covered

® 3 Entity's compliance. with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule and Pard 2, if
app!:cable -

g Busmess Assoc:ate shall reqmre all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the BAA o agree in writing to adhere to the same resftrictions and -
.conditions on the'use and disclosure of PHI contained herein and an agreement that the
Covered Entity -shall bé considered a direct third pany beneficiary of all the Business

4 ' Associate's business associate agreements.

Within ten .(10) business days -of receipt of a wnlten request from Covered Entity,
. Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices al
oSt @ records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use anddisciosure of

’ PHI to the Covered Enlity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity 1o determine Business
iy & Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the Agreement.

”

P
=2

M ‘Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writlen request from Covered Entity,
Business ‘Associate shall provide -access to PH! in-a Designated Record Set-to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Enlity, to an individual in order lo meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. X o .

Within ten {10} business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendmeni of PHI or a record about an individual containedin a Desngnaled Record
. Set: the Business Associale shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
4 amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Enlity to Iulrll its
obligations under45 CFR Section 164.526. &

,. _ ks Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PH| and information celated to
2 any disclosures as would be required fot Covered Entity 1o respond to a request by an
-.- individual for an accounling of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section -
164.528.

b Within tén (10) business days of receiving a written requesl from Covered Entity for a
requesl for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available

1o Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations -

53 to provide an accountmg of disclosures with respecl to PHi in accordance with 45 CFR
- Sedlion 164.528. ‘ 4 -

m. In the event any individual requests access lo, amendment of, or accomlmg of:_E’.;-J

Ll

'd:reclly irom ‘the- Business Associate, the Business Assomate shall within fi em

“ Exhibit F " Conlraciofinitiats
2 B Heaith Insuiance Portability At 9/5/2023
" Buslncss Associate Agreemenl o Date
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. Exhibit F . p
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the k
respensibility -of respondmg {o forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the k

individual’s requést to Covered Entity would cause. Covered Entity or the Business
‘Associale to violate HIPAA-and the-Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such Iaw and notify

_Covered Entity of such response as soon as praclicable. W

Within thirty {30) business days of terminalion of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as.specified by Covered Entity, all PHI .
received from or created or received by the Busingss Assotiate in conneclion with the A
Agreement, and shall not retain - any copies or back- -ups of such PHI |n any form or
platform. %

M. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the dispositian of ihe PHI has been
olherwise agréed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and-disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that-make the return or destruction infeasible for as

- long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its -
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate desiroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall centify ta Covered Entily that the PH! has been
destroyed. ! :

RS

Covered Enmy shall post a cumrent version of lhe Notlce of the Prwacy1 ‘Practices on the Covered

[

Entity's website: hitps:/m hhs.nh.qov/co blication m in accordance with 45 CFR

a.

(5)

(6)

1]

‘Section 164,520,

Fl

Covered Enl'i'i;' shall promptiy notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation

of permission -provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or

disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or
45.CFR Seclion 164, 508 . w e

Covered entily shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or

. disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,

to the exient that such restriction may affect Business Assocmte s use or disclosure of
PHI. 3

In.addition to the Genéral Provision$ (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity may
immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Enlity's knowledge of a.material
breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The Covered Exitity

may either immediately terminate the_Ag;eemenl or provide an opportunity for Business
Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.

I1- . -II - - ] . IL
Definitions, Laws,_and Requlalory References. All laws and regulalions used, heréin, shall

refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time 1o time. A reference in the
Agreement, as amended fo include this Exhibit I, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2,

- means the Seclion as in effect or as amended. . .,

r

is necessary {rom time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associa ﬁt

‘Change in law. Covered Entity and Business Associale agree lo take such achoE

Exhbil F ' Coatraclor intials _
Hedlth Insurance Poriabillly At . ‘9/5/2023 r
Businzss Associate Agreemaent Oate .

Page 4 of 5
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cornply with the changes-in the requurements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other .

applicable federal and state law.

* with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.
d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the Agreement shall

-

and 42 CFR Part 2.

~r

" 'Dats Ownership. The Bisiness Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership righ,!s'—J

be resolved to permit Covered Enlity and the Business Associate to comply with HIPAA

. Segreqation. If any term of condition of this BAA or the apphcation thereof to any

i e.

% person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be gwen effect withoul the invalid term or condition; 1o this end lhe
terms and condmons of this BAA are declared severable.

“ i A

Survival. Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or

desiruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) n.l., the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) g. and Paragraph 13 of the -
“General Provisions '(P-37) of the Agreement, shall. survive the termination of the BAA

Agreemenl

Department of Health and Human Services

TH
i 2

. Technical Assistance Collaborative,

2 IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the pames hereto have duly executed this Busaness Assocnaie

ot

[- T
The State Name of the Contractor
Decuigned by: Decusipnes by: ) !
[ 0 S. Fop l:uuy\. Martonr . v
‘°’°°'°"” , SIS R .
Signature of Authorized Representative Signalure of Authorized Representative
&' oL . @
Kftja S. Fox Kevin Martone -
Name of Authorized Representative ‘Name of Authorized Representative:
. Director “ o ; Executive Director
2= = — - Mg . "
Title of Authorized Representalive Title of Authorized Representalive %
h B . T ‘ i " = ;_a:_-
9/5/2023 9/5/2023 e ) '
; Date Lo« Date Yoo ;
! - td
Weob, - ‘EJ
3 5 Exnivit F Contractor nftials o
) in - ¢ & B .
& ” . ) = "Healih Insurance Portabllty Act - . 9/5/2023
Business Associala Agreement Date
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